City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting
AGENDA

Tuesday, August 26, 2014 E] "
6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages
1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer will be offered by Councillor Hobson.

3. Confirmation of Minutes
Public Hearing - August 12, 2014
Regular Meeting - August 12, 2014

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 Bylaw No. 10992 (OCP14-0010) - 1225 Lund Road, Melcor Lakeside Inc. 1-1

Requires a majority of all Members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 10992 second and third readings.

4.2 Bylaw No. 10993 (Z14-0020) - 1225 Lund Road, Melcor Lakeside Inc. 2-2
To give Bylaw No. 10993 second and third readings.

4.3 Bylaw No. 10994 (Z14-0026) - 1280 Glenmore Drive, 561655 BC Ltd. 3-3

To give Bylaw No. 10994 second and third readings.

4.4 Bylaw No. 10995 (TA14-0009) - Amendment to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 - Boat 4-4
Storage Definition

To give Bylaw No. 10995 second and third readings.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.



6.

7.

8.

Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

6.1 Bylaw No. 10962 (OCP14-0005) - 235 Queensway Avenue, 1470 & 1476 Water
Street, Portions of Mill Street & Queensway Avenue, Westcorp Holyrood Inc. et
al
Requires a majority of all Members of Council (5).

To adopt Bylaw No. 10962 in order to change the Future Land Use designation

of portions of the subject properties from the PARK - Major Park & Open Space

designation to the MXR - Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial) designation.

6.1.1 Bylaw No. 10963 (Z14-0006) - 235 Queensway Avenue, 1470 & 1476
Water Street, Portions of Mill Street & Queensway Avenue, Westcorp
Holyrood Inc. et al
To adopt Bylaw No. 10963 in order to rezone portions of the subject
properties from the C7 - Central Business Commercial and P3 - Parks
and Open Space zones to the C7Ip/rls - Central Business Commercial
(liquor primary/retail liquor sales) zone.

6.1.2 Development Permit Application No. DP14-0024 & Development
Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0025 - 235 Queensway
Avenue, 1470 & 1476 Water Street and Portions of Mill Street &
Queensway Avenue, Westcorp Holyrood Inc. et al
City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.
Mayor to invite anyone in the public gallery who deems
themselves affected by the required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider Development Permit and Development Variance Permit
applications for the development of a hotel tower including ancillary
commercial retail, conference centre, and restaurant facilities.

6.2 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0122 - 1545 Keehn Road,
Hywood Properties Ltd.

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received. Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.

To allow one (1) additional proposed fascia sign on the south elevation of the
building.

Reminders

Termination

9-152

153 - 162



CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10992

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP14-0010
Melcor Lakeside Inc., Inc.No. A0065181
1225 Lund Road

A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500".

The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1. THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 - Official
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future
Land Use designation of Lot 47, Section 18, Township 27, ODYD, Plan KAP82430,
located on 1225 Lund Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the S2RES - Single / Two Unit

Residential designation to the MRL - Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density)
designation;

2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 11" day of August, 2014,

Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk




CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10993
Z14-0020 - Melcor Lakeside Inc., Inc.No. A0065181
1225 Lund Road

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning
classification of Lot 47, Section 18, Township 27, ODYD, Plan KAP82430 located on
1225 Lund Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RM3 -
Low Density Multiple Housing zone.
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 11" day of August, 2014,
Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Approved under the Transportation Act

(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation)

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk




CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10994
Z14-0026 - 561655 BC LTD., INC.NO. BC0561655
1280 Glenmore Drive

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:
1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning
classification of Lot 1, Section 29, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 29608 located on 1280
Glenmore Drive, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RM2-
Low Density Row Housing zone.
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 11" day of August, 2014.
Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk




CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10995
TA14-0009 - Amendment to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 -
Boat Storage Definition

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".

The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1.

THAT Section 2 - Interpretation be amended by deleting the definition for BOAT
STORAGE that reads:

“BOAT STORAGE means the storage of boats and other marine equipment, which are
in working order, for the purpose of dry land moorage where the boats and marine
equipment are intended to be launched by the operator of the boat storage facility for
short term use by the boat and marine equipment owner. Boat Storage does not include
major servicing, sales, or major repair of boats or marine equipment and does not
include on-site fuel dispensing.”

And replace it with:

“BOAT STORAGE means the storage of boats and other marine equipment, which are
in working order, for the purpose of dry land moorage where the boats and marine
equipment are intended to be launched by the operator of the boat storage facility for
short term use by the boat and marine equipment owner. Where the Boat Storage
facility is actively storing 100 or more boats, Boat Storage includes on-site fuel
dispensing for the sole purpose of fuelling the boats and marine equipment stored at
the facility. The fuel storage tanks must adhere to the Petroleum Products Storage
Tank Bylaw and Best Management Practices outlined in the CCME - Environmental Code
of Practice for Aboveground and Underground Storage Tank Systems Containing
Petroleum and Allied Petroleum Products. Boat Storage does not include major
servicing, sales, or major repair of boats or marine equipment.”

This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 11" day of August, 2014,

Considered at a Public Hearing on the

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this

Approved under the Transportation Act

(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation)

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk




CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10962

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP14-0005 -
Westcorp Holyrood Inc. No. A31452

235 Queensway Avenue, 1470 & 1476 Water Street, Portions of Mill

Street and Queensway Avenue

A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500".

The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1.

THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “"Kelowna 2030 - Official
Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future
Land Use designation of:

a) part of the Mill Street Road Right-of-Way, being approximately 596m?® in area,
located adjacent to 235 Queensway Avenue and 262 Bernard Avenue, Kelowna, BC;
and

b) part of the Queensway Avenue Road Right-of-Way, being approximately 168m? in
area, located adjacent to 235 Queensway Avenue and 1470 Water Street, Kelowna,
B.C.,

from the PARK - Major Park & Open Space designation to the MXR - Mixed Use
(Residential/Commercial) designation as per Map A attached to and forming part of
this bylaw.

This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 12" day of May, 2014.

Considered at a Public Hearing on the 24™ day of June, 2014.

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 24" day of June, 2014.

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk



Subject Road Right-of-Way Notes:

Amend the OCP for a portion of the road right-of-way
from Major Park and Open Space (PARK) to
Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial) (MXR).

MAP "A" OCP AMENDMENT
OCP14-0005

D Legal Parcel
2R PARK to MXR

I Education / Institutional

[0 Mixed Use (Resldential / Commercial) X
I Major Park and Open Space %ﬁ :%
.
T o s ot e Cl't(y:i =2
accuracy. lorm: ver| 3
owna

0 5 1
e Metres Rev. Apr 09, 2014




CITY OF KELOWNA

BYLAW NO. 10963

Z14-0006 -
Westcorp Holyrood Inc. No. A31452
235 Queensway Avenue, 1470 & 1476 Water Street, Portions of Mill
Street and Queensway Avenue

A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000".
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows:

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning
classification of Lots 1 & 2, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 2698 located on 1470 & 1476
Water Street and part of the Mill Street Road Right-of-Way, being approximately
596m’ in area, located adjacent to 235 Queensway Avenue and 262 Bernard Avenue
and part of the Queensway Avenue Road Right-of-Way, being approximately 168m? in
area, located adjacent to 235 Queensway Avenue and 1470 Water Street, Kelowna,
BC. from the C7 - Central Business Commercial and P3 - Parks and Open Space zones to
the C7lp/rls - Central Business Commercial (liquor primary/retail liquor sales) zone as
per Map B attached to and forming part of this bylaw.

2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and
from the date of adoption.

Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 12" day of May, 2014.

Considered at a Public Hearing on the 24™ day of June, 2014.

Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 24" day of June, 2014.
Approved under the Transportation Act on this 26™ day of June, 2014.

Lynda Lochhead
(Ministry of Transportation)

Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this

Mayor

City Clerk



/
;‘//
//
1414 /
1/

P3

1430

Subject Properties Notes: Vel

Rezone the subject properties from
C7 Central Business Commercial to
C7lp/rls Central Business Commercial
(Liquor Primary/Retail Liquor Sales).

Subject Road Right-of-Way Notes:!

Rezone portions of the road right-of-way
from P3 Parks and Open Space to
C7lp/rls Central Business Commercial
(Liquor Primary/Retail Liquor Sales).

QUEENSWAY

1466

WATER ST

y A
\\/fo 235
S C7lp/rls 2%

235 1473
1480 1476
Subject Road Right-of-Way Notes: 1481
248 Rezone a portion of the road right-of-way

from C7 Central Business Commercial 294
to C7lp/rls Central Business Commercial

(Liquor Primary/Retail Liquor Sales).

|
|

Cc7

MAP “B” PROPOSED ZONING

File #Z14-0006

{ C7 to C7lplils

BERNARD AVE [ p3to CTIpHis

[ "] subject Properties
D—— Legal Parcel
This map s for general fnformation only. City of

The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its
accuracy. All information should be verified. Ke Iown a
o 5 1

—_—__ﬁ\netres Rev. Apr 09, 2014




REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of
Date: 8/26/2014 Kelowna
RIM No. 1250-30
To: City Manager
From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (JM)

Westcorp Holyrood Inc

Inc. No. A31452
Application: DP14-0024/DVP14-0025 Owner: 1324632 Alberta Inc.

Inc. No. A72431

City of Kelowna

235 Queensway Avenue, 1470 &
1476 Water Street, Portions of

Address: Mill Street and Queensway Applicant: Westcorp Development
Avenue
Subject: Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Applications

MXR - Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial)
PARK - Major Park & Open Space

Proposed OCP Designation: = MXR - Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial)

Existing OCP Designation:

P3 - Parks and Open Space

C7 - Central Business Commercial

C7lp/rls - Central Business Commercial (Liquor Primary/
Retail Liquor Sales)

Existing Zone:

Proposed Zone: C7lp/rls - Central Business Commercial (Liquor Primary/
Retail Liquor Sales)

1.0 Recommendation

THAT final adoption of Official Community Plan Amending Bylaw No. 10962 be considered by
Council;

THAT final adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10963 be considered by Council;

AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP14-0024 for Lots 1 and
2, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 2698, and Lot A, District Lot 139 ODYD Plan 2180 and Lots 6 and 7,
District Lot 139 ODYD Plan 505, and that Part of District Lot 139 ODYD Shown as closed Road on
Plan EPP41444, located on 235 Queensway, 1470 and 1476 Water Street, Kelowna, BC subject to
the following:



DP14-0024 / DVP14-0025 - Page 2

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general
accordance with Schedule “A”;

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land, be in general
accordance with Schedule “B”;

3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”;

4. The applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security deposit in
the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the landscaping,
as determined by a professional landscaper;

AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0025, for
Lots 1 and 2, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 2698, and Lot A, District Lot 139 ODYD Plan 2180 and
Lots 6 and 7, District Lot 139 ODYD Plan 505 and that Part of District Lot 139 ODYD Shown as
closed Road on Plan EPP41444, located on 235 Queensway, 1470 and 1476 Water Street, Kelowna,
BC;

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted:
Section 14.7.5 (a): Development Regulations

To vary to the maximum height of buildings and structures from 22.0m permitted to
83.995m proposed;

Section 14.7.5 (e): Development Regulations

To vary minimum building setback above 15.0m abutting a street from 3.0m permitted to
0.0m proposed 8 minor encroachments into the required setback as illustrated on Schedule
“D” attached to this report;

Section 14.7.5 (l)ii: Development Regulations

To vary the minimum building setback from a lane for portions of a building over 22.0 m in height
from 10.0 m permitted to 0.0m proposed as illustrated on Schedule “D” attached to this report;

AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted conditions within 180
days of Council’s approval of the Development Permit Application in order for the permit to be
issued.

2.0  Purpose

To consider Development Permit and Development Variance Permit applications for the
development of a hotel tower including ancillary commercial retail, conference centre, and
restaurant facilities.

3.0 Urban Planning Department

Urban Planning staff are supportive of the proposed Development Permit and Development
Variance Permit applications for the form and character of, and variances to permit a signature
hotel tower and supporting uses on the subject property.

10



DP14-0024 / DVP14-0025 - Page 3

Both the OCP and the Downtown Plan support tower development on the subject property as part
of a broader effort to encourage densification and increased activity in Kelowna’s downtown. The
policy direction provided in these documents supports development of up to 19 storeys in the
form of a signature building with a high quality of design.

The applicant team has come forward with a very strong proposal that meets the needs of the
proponent, while responding creatively and thoroughly to the site’s contextual challenges. The
result is an elliptical 24 storey tower containing 214 hotel units set within a five storey podium
that contains vehicle parking wrapped by at-grade retail, a conference centre, and rooftop
amenity areas.

While each face of the podium responds to its own unique context, it is the development’s direct
interface with Kerry Park that receives the greatest attention. Its massing steps down from 5
storeys to 1 storey with tiered outdoor patios focused on a rotunda feature intended to function
as a “lantern” at night on the waterfront. Uses at grade invite a high level of pedestrian activity,
which will create an engaging environment for patrons of the development and for park users.

The impacts of the development on Kerry and Stuart Parks will be positive, and will support the
objectives of the OCP and Downtown Plan. Even so, the proposal is built to the westernmost lot
line, therefore construction activity will cause temporary damage to portions of Kerry Park. Also,
the shadowing from the proposed development will have an effect on the adjacent parkland.
Staff has attempted to work with the applicant team to provide compensation for these impacts
through improvements to Kerry Park in accordance with the City’s Kerry Park Concept Plan. The
applicant’s proposed amenity contribution and Kerry Park improvement plan are described
below.

As noted above, the height of the tower exceeds what was previously considered for the site by 5
storeys, for a total building height of 24 storeys. To offset the additional building height, the
applicant has worked with staff on an amenity contribution (as recommended by OCP policy).
Staff has approached the details of this contribution with the aim of providing public benefits in
the immediate area of the development interface with Cary Park. The applicant has identified
portions of the future Cary Park plan that can be constructed as part of the development with an
overall value of approximately $359,540. Should Council support this Development Permit and
Development Variance Permit application, the applicant will bond for the amenity contribution
work prior to Development Permit issuance. It is anticipated that the identified Kerry Park
improvements would be completed to coincide with the first summer of operation for the new
hotel.

It must also be noted that while the applicant is seeking relief from the building height policy in
the OCP, the proposal does comply with the density regulations of the C7 zone.

In addition, three other very minor variances are requested by the applicant. The variances are
related to the podium of the building. Given the high quality architecture and context
appropriate design, staff is supportive of the variances.

4.0 Proposal
4.1 Background

In 2008, the subject properties were involved in the CD21 - Comprehensive Development (“CD21
Downtown Zone”) zone that aimed to facilitate the redevelopment of several blocks of the
downtown core of Kelowna, reshaping the downtown into a vibrant, high-density, and pedestrian
friendly area. The zone proved highly controversial, and the introduction of a large number of
tall towers was the focus of considerable concern. The CD21 bylaw was defeated by Council in
2010.

11



DP14-0024 / DVP14-0025 - Page 4

Following the defeat of the CD21 zone, Council tasked staff with the development of a plan to
guide the development of the downtown into the future. Working with diverse interest groups
over several years, the Downtown Plan was adopted by Council on February 27, 2012. The overall
vision of the plan is a downtown that “will include areas where citizens choose to live, shop, play
and congregate and where businesses choose to do business and where developers choose to
develop”. To achieve this, the focal points of the plan are:

1. Making downtown more pedestrian friendly

2. Increasing activity downtown

3. Increasing the number of people living downtown
4. Reducing crime/increasing safety

5. Making it easier to park

Within the context of its broader goals for the success of Kelowna’s downtown, the plan
specifically contemplates building height. The Downtown Building Heights Map provides general
maximum height guidance on a lot-by-lot basis, and expresses a form of development that
generally increases height as buildings move away from the lake. On this map, the subject
properties are noted as suitable for a maximum of 19 storeys in height. The policy direction from
this plan has been transferred into the Official Community Plan and has been refined there. The
subject site is specifically discussed in the OCP, which provides the following as a guideline to be
used in the consideration of future development on the site:

“The former Willow Inn site at the corner of Queensway Avenue and Mill Street is
significant given the site’s proximity to the waterfront and its high visibility. In order to
achieve approval for up to 19 storeys on this site, any proposed development should be
required to demonstrate that it gives careful consideration to view impacts from other
parts of downtown, is a signature landmark building and that it meets a high standard of
design excellence regarding aesthetics and building performance.”

Using this direction, the applicant has engaged a series of architectural and landscape
consultants to design the development to a quality that reflects the site’s prominence. Together,
the applicant team has been very pro-active in working with City staff to ensure that issues are
identified and requirements addressed as early as possible.

The development will interface directly with Kerry Park, which has recently undergone a concept
site planning exercise with City staff and a landscape consultant. The Kerry Park Concept Plan
was completed in September of 2013. However, no funding for its implementation has been
included in the 2020 Capital Plan (refer to Section 3.0 discussion).

In accordance with Council Policy No. 367, the applicant has completed a Public Information
Session (see attached Community Consultation Summary). The session was held on Wednesday,
March 12, 2014 from 3pm - 7pm at the Rotary Centre for the Arts. In preparation for the session,
the applicant took out daily ads in local newspapers for two weeks in advance, and went door-to-
door in the downtown area providing flyers to businesses. Three large format development signs
were also posted on the subject property, each of which identified the date, location and time
for the information session. The applicant also maintains a website for the project.

Over the course of the information session, the applicant recorded the attendance of 188
members of the public. It is thought that this is an underestimation of attendance, as not all
attendees signed in. Attendees were provided with a clipboard that held a survey for them to
complete. 129 surveys were returned. Of the surveys returned, the responses were
overwhelmingly positive, with only 13 negative responses submitted. Reponses noting support for

12



DP14-0024 / DVP14-0025 - Page 5

the project were principally focused on the form and character of the proposed development,
and on the increased level of activity that the project would bring. The responses submitted not
in support noted concerns about height, proximity to lake, and whether the development is
accessible for all socio-economic groups in Kelowna.

Finally, the proposal was reviewed by the City’s staff-led Advisory Design Team at its meeting of
March 13, 2014. Overall, the feedback from staff on the design of the proposal was
overwhelmingly positive, and no significant changes were suggested.

4.2 Project Description

The applicant is proposing to develop a signature hotel tower on the subject property, including
ancillary conference centre, commercial retail, and restaurant uses. Both the tower and podium
components of the development are critical for different reasons, and each is discussed in detail
separately below. This is followed by an analysis of the impacts of the development and the
request for a road closure.

The Tower:

The design of the development has been driven by several key factors, of which its context is one
of the most critical. Within the larger area of downtown Kelowna, from Clement Avenue in the
north to Harvey Avenue to the south, the skyline of Kelowna features a number of towers, both
existing and approved but not constructed. At the north side of downtown, the Waterscapes/Sky
tower is the tallest at 26 storeys in height. The Discovery Point, Dolphins, and Grand Hotel
towers are adjacent to this at 26, 17, and 11 storeys respectively. Within the central area of the
downtown, tower height is somewhat lower, with the Downtown Lofts at 11 storeys, and the
Madison at 15 storeys. A notable exception to this is the recently approved Monaco towers, which
are designed at 18 and 26 storeys. Moving further south, an approved development on the 400
block of Bernard Avenue is 26 storeys in height.

The proposed tower is 24 storeys in height, and contains of 214 rooms. As viewed from a
distance, the proposed tower would be generally in keeping with the height of towers existing or
approved, and would act as a bookend of sorts, anchoring Kelowna’s downtown. However, this
does exceed by 5 storeys the maximum height of development considered for the site in the OCP
and the Downtown Plan. In support of this request, the applicant noted that “the additional 5
storeys were needed in order to reach the number of hotel rooms required to make the hotel
efficient and economically viable as a project.”

The physical design of the tower is also crucial to the success of the development. Both the
Downtown Plan and the OCP encourage the development of slender tower forms, as opposed to
lower, bulkier buildings, with the aim of protecting privacy, reducing visual impact and
shadowing. The applicant team has explored a variety of building forms in an effort to meet this
direction. The team has arrived at a tower design whose central form is an ellipse, which allows
the tower to be oriented such that it presents a very narrow silhouette when viewed from the
east (downtown) or west (lake). The north and south elevations of the tower are accented by a
staggered pattern of balconies, which also assist in breaking down the monolithic form of the
ellipse.

The tower will contain the vast majority of hotel units. Nearer the base, the uses of the tower
begins to shift towards more general hotel uses, including the lobby, hospitality suite, fitness
centre and spa, and hotel offices. The core of the tower consists of a staircase and three
elevators. Rooms surround this central core, with a range of between 2-13 hotel units per floor.

13



DP14-0024 / DVP14-0025 - Page 6

A white composite panelling and glazing will form the principal materials used on the tower.
Major engineered wood elements will accent the tower at its top and base. Balconies on the
tower will feature coloured glass privacy screens, and the underside of the balconies will be
finished in wood.

The Podium:

The hotel tower is set within a 5 storey podium that contains a core of vehicle parking wrapped
by commercial retail and conference uses. When viewed at the finer scale of the blocks
immediately surrounding the site, the impact of the podium component of the development is far
more significant. While the tower is most impactful when viewed from a distance and its
footprint only occupies a portion of the site, the podium covers the entire site. Indeed, it is the
podium that meets adjacent public space directly, and it is the portion of the building with which
members of the public will interact most directly. With this in mind, the podium must unify and
enhance the urban fabric of its immediate vicinity.

The massing of existing buildings in the general vicinity of the subject site is typically in the
range of 1-6 storeys. Buildings along Bernard Avenue in particular are of a limited height,
reflecting their heritage character. Development in these areas presents a consistent street wall,
with most buildings having no setback from property lines. In some cases, and particularly along
Bernard Avenue, storefronts are relatively narrow, and often feature residential or office uses on
upper floors. Moving north of Bernard, buildings tend to be less narrow, single-use structures
more suited to office uses and reflective of later phases of downtown development.

The west side of the proposed building interacts directly with Kerry Park. Where there is
presently a road (Mill Street) separating the site from Kerry Park, the proposal aims to bring the
podium of the development to meet the eastern limit of Kerry Park. As the “keystone” to the
downtown waterfront, Kerry Park is very well used by residents and visitors and is home to
regular festivals and activities in the summertime. The park contains “the Sails” and “Ogopogo”
public art pieces, and also provides the only access/egress for the new Downtown Marina. While
each face of the podium is important, it is perhaps the interface of the development with Kerry
Park - with its heightened level of activity - that is the most crucial.

Both the form and finishing of the podium structure respond well to the varied needs of their
surroundings. This challenge is rendered all the more difficult, as the podium must also provide
all the parking necessary for the hotel and associated uses. To achieve this, five levels of parking
are wrapped by a commercial retail, restaurant, coffee shop, office, conference centre and hotel
uses.

The podium interface with Kerry Park (west elevation) receives the greatest level of attention,
using curving forms that “reach out” to the park and that gradually decrease in height from 5 to
one storey. The ground floor is highly active, featuring a coffee shop to the south, and
restaurant, rotunda and bar moving along the building face to the north. Rooftops along this face
are also vibrant spaces, providing outdoor rooftop deck areas for the various hotel uses in the
upper levels of the podium.

Moving on to the Queensway Avenue face of the building (north elevation), the podium
transitions from an activated pedestrian space, to a design that responds to more of the
functional needs of the hotel, including the main entry/lobby, vehicle entry and exit points, and
the entry for the parkade. Despite these more functional needs, the architecture of the building
maintains a human scale, and echoes the curvilinear designs from the west elevation. The tower
meets the ground at northwest corner of the building, which contains the main entry and lobby
for the hotel. This is accented by a large porte-cochére/entrance canopy that uses engineered
wood to reflect the shapes of the Downtown Marina buildings and the light standards on Bernard.

14



DP14-0024 / DVP14-0025 - Page 7

Above the main floor, hotel and conference centre uses look north onto Stuart Park with outdoor
patios providing increased animation and building articulation.

The east face of the podium building (east elevation) changes yet again and aims to bring the
small scale retail environment from Bernard Avenue onto Water Street. Multiple commercial
retail units front directly onto Water Street at grade, with apartment/hotel units located above.
The conference centre on the upper level completes this building face with an interesting
architectural feature that is called the “kaleidoscope” by the applicant. The kaleidoscope is a
small portion of the building enclosed in glass that projects from the building face at the
conference level over the sidewalk. This is a small, but unique space that allows hotel users to
interact with passersby downtown in a unique way.

The north elevation of the building is the most utilitarian, as it faces directly onto the lane, and
is generally not visible from most vantage points. This side of the building contains service access
to the back of house operations of the hotel. The internal parkade structure faces onto the lane,
so the applicant team has proposed using long, rectangular planting boxes to soften the building
face and to provide visual interest.

Overall, the scale of the podium fits well within its immediate context, providing critical building
functions in a manner that respects its surroundings. While unified in an overall design concept,
each building face adapts to its setting, whether that is a single storey coffee shop spilling onto
Kerry Park, or a compact retail unit facing Water Street. As a contrast to the tower, the
materials palette of the podium uses elements, such as engineered wood, wood-like panels, and
stone, that serve to “ground” the development. These heavier grounding elements are mixed
with large glazed surfaces that promote transparency and enhance surrounding public
environments.

Development Impacts:

The subject property is a prominent site near the waterfront of the downtown core. The site is
presently underdeveloped, containing a parking lot and a single storey commercial building
fronting Water Street. The proposed development represents a major departure from this use.
Notwithstanding the fact that a tower development was anticipated for the site by both the
Downtown Plan and the OCP, the proposal will have significant impacts on Kelowna from multiple
fronts. As noted previously, the Downtown Plan outlines some of the impacts that tower
development can have and suggests issues that should be thoroughly examined when considering
tower development, including: contextual fit into the surrounding urban fabric, view impacts,
shadowing of the public realm, overlook and privacy impacts on neighbouring buildings, impacts
on the overall skyline, distance between adjacent tall buildings, and impacts on adjacent or
nearby heritage structures. Each of these is addressed below.

Contextual fit and skyline: Both in its tower and podium designs, the proposal makes a significant
effort to respond to its varied context, whether that be through the introduction of at-grade
retail fronting Water Street, or through the use of materials that reflect the Okanagan landscape.
The tower also fits well within the Kelowna skyline, as indicated previously.

View impacts: Reducing the view impact of the proposal was one of the driving factors behind
the elliptical shape of the tower. This shape presents is narrowest face along the east-west axis,
which preserves view corridors both to and from the lake.

Shadowing: Even though the tower is not the component of the building most directly
experienced by pedestrians, it does have an impact on the pedestrian realm through shadowing.
Shadowing is an important consideration in the design and placement of towers, as the
cumulative impact of tower development can mean that the streets and public spaces below

15



DP14-0024 / DVP14-0025 - Page 8

have limited sun exposure. The applicant has conducted a shadow analysis to identify the impact
of the building at varying times of day over different seasons. According to this analysis, the
shadow impact of the development will be directed mostly towards the Queensway jetty and the
southern portions of Stuart Park.

Overlook and privacy: The only interface challenge presented by the development is where the
proposed building interfaces with the existing Kelly O’Bryan’s restaurant. In this case, the
applicant team worked with the ownership of Kelly O’Bryan’s in order to guarantee the views and
privacy of Kelly O’Bryan’s patrons. To achieve this, the proposal steps the building down to a
single storey. Staff do not anticipate any privacy concerns for any other nearby buildings.

Building separation: The aim of this criterion is to ensure that tall buildings are separated and
staggered such that they do not form a “wall”, eliminating view corridors and severely shadowing
the public realm. In this case, this is the first tower in the vicinity, so the criterion will likely be
more applicable as additional towers are developed in the future in accordance with the
Downtown Plan.

Heritage Impact: Bernard Avenue contains a number of significant heritage buildings; however,
none of these is directly impacted by the proposal.

Moving beyond the above impacts, one of the most significant areas of change is the interface of
the building with Kerry Park. Where Mill Street presently divides commercial development from
the park, the proposal will see the closure of the majority of Mill Street, bringing the
development into direct contact with Kerry Park. Ensuring that the development interfaces
successfully with Kerry Park is a major challenge for the project. The approach taken by the
applicant has been to provide a very high level of activity fronting the park, “reaching out” into
the park to blur the line between public and private, and indoor and outdoor space. As a result,
both the look and feel of the park will change. It will become a more active, vibrant space with
residents and visitors migrating to and from the hotel and park-front commercial uses. Several
tiers of rooftop decks will overlook the park.

In addition to visual and park impacts, the applicant has provided a study that suggests that the
project will provide significant and ongoing economic benefit to the city (see attached Economic
Impact Analysis). According to the report, the construction phase of development will result in a
total of 721 jobs created, and a total investment of $112.2 million. In terms of the ongoing
operating benefits of the hotel, it is expected to 299 total jobs and $17.7 million annually.

The applicant has also provided a Transportation Impact Analysis (TIA), which evaluates the
impact of the proposal (including the closure of Mill Street) on the City’s transportation network.
Even with the closure of Mill Street, downtown intersections are predicted to operate within
capacity. It should be noted that the closure of Mill Street will result in the loss of 22 parking
stalls. The applicant has committed to securing an equal number of stalls within the development
for public parking use.

4.3 Site Context

The subject site consists of five lots, as well as an area of road to be closed, totaling
approximately 4,448 m? of land area. The site is located in the Waterfront District of Kelowna’s
downtown, between Water and Mill Streets and Bernard and Queensway Avenues. The site is
bounded on the south by a service lane.

Presently, the site contains an at-grade parking lot and a single storey commercial building
fronting Water Street. However, the site has a rich history dating back to 1928, when the original
Willow Inn Hotel was opened. The hotel remained a focal point for waterfront activity downtown
for decades to come. After years of decline, the hotel was finally demolished in 2008/2009.

16



DP14-0024 / DVP14-0025 - Page 9

The site contains multiple zones, with the majority being C7 or C7lp/rls. Only a small portion of
the road right-of-way is zoned P3. Consistent with this, the OCP designation for the majority of
the site is MXR, with only a small portion of road right-of-way being designated PARK. The
applicant has a rezoning to C7LP/RLS for the entire site which Council has advance to 3™ reading.

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows:

Orientation Zoning Land Use
North P3 - Parks and Open Space Stuart Park
P1 - Major Institutional City Hall
BC Tree Fruits
East C7 - Central Business Commercial Queensway Transit Terminal
Sturgeon Hall, Bordello’s
C7 - Central Business Commercial
) Bank of Montreal
C7lp/rls - Central Business . .
South . . , . Bernard Ave retail & food primary
Commercial (Liquor Primary/Retail .
. (various)
Liquor Sales)
West P3 - Parks and Open Space Kerry Park
Subject Property Map: Downtown Hotel Proposal
0 X Rl
_ i d F
2 i =
i i 6, S A &
et i 1P 7 by e iﬁ
: P £ ] BT _ WCLps
/f' ; a::,,_ﬁi '-\‘X@.'ﬁ | !' % "}_' LY vy ow B .
‘ 2 77z e
_/,Q% S . ‘; : o ‘ | g L 3 > 9 | ;|
D CTUR et i 2 L & " g8,
B, @i I BN GV 2 T AR
i P \ " r— ,"E '{ 5 , e
5 4 L] i e e
" - 4 : ‘ K i n 7l -.’J_ E : f f'ij‘F
- A ] R S P UNTR r — se T
B N, M B Mab WP S BRARO e B
. 1 : . B Tovel ¥ vy Suay
S .

. M T A, RS LT
City_of Kelowna ; Accuracy,and correctness not guaranteed.  ~

4.4  Zoning Analysis Table

Zoning Analysis Table

17



DP14-0024 / DVP14-0025 - Page 10

C71p/rls ZONE
CRITERIA REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL
Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations
Lot Area 200 m’ 4,476 m*
Lot Width 6.0m 94.51 m
Lot Depth 30.0m 78.38 m
Development Regulations
Total Units - 214
Floor Area Ratio 9.0 7.3
Height 22.0m 24 storeys / 83.995 m@
Front Yard 0.0 m 0.0m
Side Yard (west) 0.0 m 0.0m
Side Yard (east) 0.0m 0.0m
Rear Yard 0.0m 0.0m
Setback above 15.0 m:
- Abutting a street 3.0 0.0 m*®
Setback above 22.0 m:
- From aninternal lot line 15.0 m Exceeds
- From a lane 10.0 m 0.0 m (for 675mm)*©
Other Regulations
Minimum Parking Requirements 250 stalls 242 stalls + 8 cash-in-lieu
Bicycle Parking 13 Class | 17 Class |
14 Class Il 18 Class Il
Private Open Space 555 m* 4,365.76 m*
Loading Space 8 spaces 3 spaces®

O Indicates a requested variance to the maximum height of buildings and structures from 22.0m permitted to 83.995m proposed.
® Indicates a requested variance to the minimum building setback above 15.0m abutting a street from 3.0m required to 0.0m
proposed. This variance is triggered by 8 minor encroachments into the required setback. These are illustrated in the attached
Variance Analysis.

© Indicated a requested variance to the minimum building setback from a lane for portions of a building over 22.0 m in height
from 10.0 m permitted to 0.0 m proposed. This variance is triggered by a portion of the parkade structure that encroaches into the

setback by a total of 675mm. This is illustrated in the attached Variance Analysis.

5.0 Current Development Policies
5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)
Development Process

Compact Urban Form." Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1.

Ensure appropriate and context sensitive built form.?

Public Space.’ Integrate safe, high-quality, human-scaled, multiuse public spaces, such as parks,
plazas and squares, as part of development or redevelopment within Urban and Village Centres.

' City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process).
City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 5.5 (Development Process).
City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.8.1 (Development Process).

18



DP14-0024 / DVP14-0025 - Page 11

Ensure that Urban Centres develop as vibrant commercial nodes.*
Encourage uses and commercial ventures that promote local tourism.’

Visitor Accommodation.® Consider allowing visitor accommodation along the shore zone provided
that such a use protects the riparian area, would be compatible with the neighbourhood and site
context, and public enjoyment

Sustainable Prosperity.’ Assign priority to supporting the retention, enhancement and expansion
of existing businesses and post secondary institutions and the attraction of new businesses and
investment identified as bringing sustainable prosperity to Kelowna.

5.2 Kelowna Downtown Plan

Building Heights.® Allow building heights to reach a maximum of the heights noted on Map 3
(unless existing zoning provides for greater heights). To achieve those heights, Council may
consider variances from the heights set out in the Zoning Bylaw, provided that the additional
height (beyond that provided in the Zoning Bylaw) results in the creation of affordable housing or
yields other significant community benefits and is appropriate from the perspective of the
following considerations:

« Contextual fit into the surrounding urban fabric

» Shadowing of the public realm

» View impacts

» Overlook and privacy impacts on neighbouring buildings

o Impacts on the overall skyline

» Distance between adjacent tall buildings

« Impacts on adjacent or nearby heritage structures

» Building form and massing to mitigate negative impacts of tall building.

Tower Separation.” Require, where height variances are sought, that a minimum separation
distance of 36.5 m (120 ft.) be provided between adjacent towers where there are floor plates
larger than 697 sq. m (7,500 sq. ft.) and a minimum separation distance of 30.5 m (100 ft) will be
sought between towers where floor plates are less than 697 sq. m. (7500 sq. ft.).

Tall Buildings/Block.'® Limit the number of taller buildings on any long blocks (typ. 270m long) to
5 towers per block.

Willow Inn Site." Allow up to 19 storeys on the former Willow Inn site at the corner of
Queensway Avenue and Mill Street upon demonstration that the proposed development gives
careful consideration to view impacts from other parts of downtown, is a signature landmark
building and that it meets a high standard of design excellence.

Retail Corridors.' Encourage retail uses to locate on designated Retail Corridors as noted in red
on Map 5. Encourage a second strong retail anchor at the east end of Bernard Avenue to
complement Safeway and to support Bernard Avenue as the primary Downtown retail corridor.

City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 5.25 (Development Process).
City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 5.26 (Development Process).
City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.26.2 (Development Process).
City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 8.1.1 (Economic Development).
City of Kelowna Downtown Plan, Policy 12.

City of Kelowna Downtown Plan, Policy 13.

0 City of Kelowna Downtown Plan, Policy 14.

1 City of Kelowna Downtown Plan, Policy 15.

12 City of Kelowna Downtown Plan, Policy 30.

B © 00 N o 0o »

19



DP14-0024 / DVP14-0025 - Page 12

Discourage new financial institutions and offices on the ground floor of buildings within the retail
area show on Map 5 (ATMs are not included in this policy). Financial institutions and offices are
better situated as ground floor uses outside of the retail area or on floors above-grade within the
retail area.

6.0 Technical Comments

6.1 Building & Permitting Department

Comments to be provided during Development Permit process.

6.2  Development Engineering Department

See attached Development Engineering Memoranda, dated April 28, 2014.

6.3 Bylaw Services

No comments received.

6.4 Fire Department
See attached letter, dated February 21, 2014.

6.5 Interior Health Authority
See attached letter, dated March 17, 2014.

6.6 FortisBC (electric)

Due to the size of the development there is potential for offsite upgrade requirements. Further,
previous comments provided with respect to the proposed road closure area remain accurate
(email forwarded below). Again, there are significant underground primary facilities servicing
Kerry Park and various other properties in the area, including several owned by the City of
Kelowna which will have to be moved to accommodate this development. The applicant is
responsible for costs associated with any change to the existing service as well as the provision of
appropriate land rights where required.

In the interim, FortisBC Inc. (electric) requests appropriate land rights to protect those facilities
and services to neighbouring properties affected by the proposed development.

It should be noted that additional land rights issues may arise from the design process but can be
dealt with at that time, prior to construction.

6.7 Telus

TELUS will provide underground facilities to this development. Developer will be required to
supply and install conduit as per TELUS policy.

6.8 Shaw
No Concern.
6.9 Ministry of Transportation

Approval from the Ministry of Transportation was received.

20



DP14-0024 / DVP14-0025 - Page 13

6.10 RCMP

No Concerns.

7.0  Application Chronology
Date of Application Received: February 17, 2014

Advisory Design Team: March 13, 2014
Public Notification & Consultation: Public Information Session held on March 12, 2014

Date of OCP Amendment and Rezoning Consideration: June 24, 2014

Report prepared by:

Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager

Approved for Inclusion: D. Gilchrist, Div. Dir. Of Community Planning & Real Estate

Attachments:

Subject Property Map

Project Rationale

Road Closure Plan

Site Plan

Conceptual Elevations

Landscape Plan

Context/Site Photos

Renderings

Shadow Analysis

Variance Analysis

Economic Impact Analysis, prepared by Grant Thornton LLP, dated January 30, 2014
Transportation Impact Analysis

Community Consultation Summary

Development Engineering Memoranda, dated April 28, 2014

Letter from the Interior Health Authority, dated March 17, 2014
Letter from the Kelowna Fire Department, dated February 21, 2014

21



Page 1 of 1

Map Output
Application
DP1i4-0024 DVP14-0025
Subject Property /_rr
1
i cP
1
|
A
W1 :
" PLAN 16502
4’ DI 1313 DOYI E AVE —
DL53: i a—
BLKCH * EpPlsgsz "
W2 DL1527 - R {04
4 |
- A b, frLaras
PLAN 5439 . 9
I E1199p
1 : =
o ! ] | s
L. 15 -~ i & CF
- s, P i J R D Kr1s
Y[ Z T
K1809 o
A 7378 cP 3 27
IF— Als ol .‘l’ A S )
) 2 urj : 1F 3z A
BERNARD AVE
ol ¥ A T P
! a7yt |81 7 l-‘z‘EsHi AK;:I_ "7E
A | 2650 6|5 A 32 15 1 ~
msjﬂﬁ NEME ‘"Hﬁ —
. LAWRENCE AVE b
IR T 3
B 4 ;83 4 A A
H 5= -3 |AinSpace PL. 8615% 3
X g - [ TIT e L3 ﬁ(w;
S 54 8418
.I: dlilp H [ ° B
1 -
1 - .
":::::"""— '150 18 14 P E_JL B F A A
H’ - = s i i
i DL. 14 o - il
" e LP PLAN 24247 91299 PL.40022 A PLAN " 34597 A
i 0 -
o pLAN _ HAR 3
.-.'—,', - 1
t T C3 . A 1
/O > I [ S
i ]
L 4555
i 2

[city of Ketowna /- Accurady and eneein

Map: 847 x 91

m -- Scale 1:5,000

114-02-17

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

Lo I Tt et A fampr]ead frmpm aar acmman Beriman?ServiceName=Overview Man&Clien...

2/17/2014

22




Westcorp

Project Rationale for the Proposed Downtown Hotel

The former Willow [nn property (currently a temporary parking lot), located adjacent to Kerry
Park, is one of the most highly visible and important sites in the city of Kelowna. Because of its
proximity to the sweet spot of our downtown, it represents a tremendous opportunity to bring
more life and activity to the waterfront and downtown —to once again provide a connection
between the city and the lake.

In 1928, the Willow Inn hotel opened on the downtown waterfront to much fanfare and acclaim.
Ti quickly became a popular choice for visitors, as well as a thriving community venue where
residents gathered to socialize. It became an important hub of the downtown, expanding over the
years to include the Willow Inn Lodge and the Ferry Dock coffec shop. Today, this site remains
an ideal location for a downtown hotel because of its views to the lake, marina, and Kerry, Stuart
and City Parks — in fact, no other downtown site can rival it. What was done in 1928
demonstrated great vision and foresight in meeting the needs of the community. Once again it is
time to bring that kind of forward thinking and pride to this site. This development application
for an iconic downtown hotel recognizes the extreme importance of the opportunity and
envisions a project that will return this location to its place as a destination and popular hub on

the watetfront.

With a design that takes iis inspiration from the city’s Bernard Streetscape and the recently
constructed marina buildings, the project proposes a 206 room boutique hotel with 17,000 sf of
international quality conference space, 5,000 sf of restaurant, 4,800 sf of retail, and 2,400 sf of
coffec shop. The development proposes a high standard of architectural design and the sensitive
integration with the downtown waterfront. With an iconic presence, the project is envisioned as
a significant community asset, one that will achieve one of the key principles that guided the
Downtown Plan Charrette process, namely to “Enhance Kelowna’s identity nationally and
internationally and enhance the identity of downtown as Kelowna’s Principle Centre.”

Why does the hotel application propose the purchase of portions of Mill St. and Queensway
Ave.?

When design work commenced, it quickly became apparent that adequate parking could not be
accommodated and screened using the current site, especially given the high water table that
makes going underground unfeasible. Expansion of the site to accommodate a hotel
development would require purchase of Mill Street to the west. This was thought reasonable and
Jogical because Mill St.’s main purpose, access to the Willow Inn site, was not necessary for the
new hotel. Traffic engineering opinion also suggested that the continuation of Mill Street was
not required for traffic flow purposes because Mill St. represented little more than a second

300 — 1460 Pandosy Street, Kelowna British Columbia V1Y 1P3 | Phone: 250 763 1400  Fax: 250 861 5020 | Email: mail@westcorp.net

23




Page |2

connection between Bernard Ave. and Water St. The parking challenge, however, proved to
have some very positive consequences in terms of urban design and goals for the watertfront
because, if the hotel was located directly adjacent to the park, rather than separated from itby a
road, the hotel could provide some much needed animation and definition to Kerry Park. A
pedestrian realm would be created between the hotel and the waterfront park, and hospitality
uses along the edge of the park would provide ideal connections and integration with the park.

Purchase of Mill St. would also provide the opportunity to create an interesting and attractive
transition between the hotel and Kelly O’Bryan’s, one that would not include a highly visible
service lane. After consulting with the owner of Kelly O’Bryan’s, a low coffee shop building
was designed, with careful attention to preserve views to the lake from Kelly O’Bryan’s 2nd
floor outdoor patio. At grade, the small remnant of road adjacent to Kelly O’Bryan’s could also
present a wonderful opportunity to create a sidewalk patio (similar to what is seen along the new
Bernard Ave. streetscape) and pedestrian and green space plaza that would further activate and
animate the park edge.

Why is the hotel important from a planning perspective?

With the Kelowna Yacht Club already under construction and the final phase of Stuart Park soon
to follow, the proposed hotel represents onc of the final picces of the puzzle in revitalization of
the downtown waterfront. The iconic hotel will provide a key connection point along the
waterfront - from the wetlands of Brandt’s Creek in the north to City Park on the south. This
project will also be a significant catalyst for further development in Kelowna’s downtown. The
site provides the perfect location to achieve a vibrant downtown waterfront hotel, a use that is
highly desirable in the downtown core, and with limited opportunities in Kelowna to enjoy a
meal while viewing the lake, the new hospitality uses will be welcomed by both residents and
visitors.

Some key principles of the OCP which are included within the project are the strong sense of
authenticity reflective of the distinet urban design character of Kelowna, the high quality of
structure, and strong integration with the surrounding context. The architectural materials,
finishes and details have been carefully selected and designed to harmonize with the Kelowna
context, while at the same time raise the benchmark for future development by creating a fresh,
vibrant and iconic architectural design.

Through the incorporation of stepping forms, creative massing, varying geometry, rich natural
materials and an emphasis on human scale, the design creates an interesting, pedestrian friendly
interface with adjacent streets and park spaces. As a catalyst for an enjoyable waterfront
experience, the design promotes public safety through active engagement of outdoor patios and
walkways with the internal programming of the adjacent hotel lobby, restaurant, coffee shop, and
overlook from the layered terraces of the podium, ali of which will be highly animated with
people.

300 — 1460 Pandosy Street, Kelowna British Columbia V1Y 1P3 | Phone: 250 743 1400 Fax: 250 861 5020 | Email: mail@westcorp.net




Page |3

How many parking stalls on Mill St. and Queensway will be lost in order to accommodate
this development proposal? How many parking stalls will be provided in the projeet, and
how was this number determined?

Twenty two stalls will be lost on Mill and Queensway as a result of the new hotel. Theses stalls
will be rebuilt within the parkade structure of the hotel and a covenant on the property’s title will
guarantee that they remain available for public use.

According to the zone tequirements of the City of Kelowna, 250 parking stalls are required. The
proposed project provides 242, 8 short of the zone target. As part of the application submission,
a traffic and parking analysis has been undertaken by Bunt & Assoc., 2 transportation consulting
firm with extensive experience in Kelowna and its downtown core. According to their analysis,
the number of stalls required to accommodate full occupancy of the hotel and its associated uses
is 175. The findings of their report state that the project will provide 67 more stalls than are
actually needed. This surplus parking will assist with the public parking needs of the downtown
core.

What determined the size of the project?

There were a number of key considerations which led to the ultimate size and shape of the
development. The project needed to be financially viable, the size of the project needed to make
sense from a demand perspective, and the site needed to be able to accommodate the required
number of parking stalls. Equally important, the project needed to respect the sensitivities,
aspirations and hopes for this important location in our city. The downtown is “the anchor for
the city and attracts people. It forms the reputation of the city and as such should be the best it
could possibly be.” (Excerpted from the Downtown Plan).

In terms of financial viability, the hotel needed to have a minimum of 200 rooms, and, in terms
of demand, event planners, Tourism Kelowna, and representatives from other hotels told us that
200 rooms was the correct number required if the new hotel was to successfully fulfil a needed
support role in the downtown core. With two downtown hotels within walking distance of each
other, having a combined room count of approximately 600 rooms, Kelowna will be in a much
better position to attract larger conferences to our city. We believe there will be excellent
opportunitics for synergics between the hotels.

According to the Downtown Plan, 19 storeys can be considered on the Willow Inn site “upon
demonstration that the proposed development gives careful consideration to view impacts from
other parts of downtown, is a signature Jandmark building and mects a high standard of design
excellence.”

300 — 1460 Pandosy Street, Kelowna British Columbia V1Y 1P3 | Phone: 250 763 1400 | Fax: 250 861 5020 | Email: mail@westcorp.net



Page |4

The architectural form of the hotel was developed with a specific architectural rationale related
to the necessity to achieve balance between form, massing and the various hotel uses. The
design of the rooms and the potential of the floor plates resulted in 206 rooms on top of the
podium, for a total of 24 storeys. If the tower floor plate were to increase in size, the tower
would be lower, but it would be bulky and the elegance of correct proportion would be lost. A
slender elliptical shape was chosen as this narrows the perception of the form achieving an
appropriate balance between mass and height. The tower presents a very narrow face to the lake
and to the east, minimizing impact to the lake views from tall buildings that will be built in the
future behind it.

There was an earlier investigation into providing 200 rooms in two shorter towers, but the two
tower scenario had much more significant visual impact, both from the street level and from the
surrounding buildings, especially given that the site size did not allow for good separation of the
towers. One tall slender tower was deemed to be the most architecturally and visually appealing
solution, with much less visual impact from other buildings, from the water, and from the strect
level.

Siriking the right balance between all the varying objectives was a key driver in achieving a
design that would fulfil the planning requirements of the City of Kelowna, the need for economic
feasibility, the aspirations of the community for the waterfront, the vision for a landmark
development on this important site, and the expectations of guests wanting a top class hotel
experience.

This site is a former hotel site, already zoned C7. What approval processes does this
development application need to go through with the City of Kelowna?

a)} Development Permit Application for the form and character of the overall proposal

b) Development Variance Permit for a height variance, a parking variance and two variances
related to the podium

c) Proposed road closures of portions of Mill Street and Queensway

d) Proposed purchase from the City of portions of closed road

e) Rezoningand OCP amendment of a portion of the road closure area

f) Landscaping and servicing improvements on public and private property

The former Willow Inn site does not require rezoning. The rezoning applies only to the western
haif (one lane) of Mill St. that Westcorp is proposing to consolidate into the site. Technically,
zoning in the City of Kelowna extends to the middle of each road because roads do not have a
specific zone attributed to them. In this case, the P3 zoning of Kerry Park is attributed to the
western half of Mill St.  Throughout all of Kelowna, commercial and residential zones extend
onto the roadway regardiess of the fact that the commercial and residential uses do not. Since,
technically, the west half of Mill St. is zoned P3 (because Mill St. is beside Kerry Park), a
rezoning is required in order to consolidate the roadway into the Willow lnn site. Tt should be
clearly understood, however, that there is no reduction of Kerry Park required by this
development.

300 -- 1460 Pandosy Street, Kelowna British Columbia V1Y 1P3 | Phone: 250 763 1400 | Fax: 250 861 5020 | Email: mail@westcorp.net




Page |5

What role will the conference space play?

The 17,000 sf of conference space in the new hotel will accommodate 300+ for dinner. The
state-of-the-art rooms will be international quality, have expansive lake views, and access to
rooftop patios overlooking Kerry and Stuart Parks. There are few conference spaces in the North
America, or the world, that will be able to rival this location or expericnce. New conference
business will be attracted o Kelowna as a result of this new venue, and local residents will have
fabulous new facilities in which to host business events, local galas, and first class Okanagan
weddings.

What benefits will the proposed hotel provide to the downtown and Kelowna as a whole?

[n terms of economic impact, the direct capital investment to develop the hotel is expected to be
in excess of $65M, will lead to over 720 (direct + indirect) construction jobs, and provide an
economic output of over $112M. Over the long term, nearly 300 (direct + indirect} on-going
positions will be created by the proposed hotel, over 100 of which will be in the new hotel. 1n
terms of impact on surrounding businesses, it is forecast that the average daily spend of each
hotel guest will be $297 per day. This equates to $20.8M spent annually, much of which is
expected to be spent in Kelowna’s downtown. In addition, the hotel will have many positive
social impacts for residents and visitors of Kelowna because of how the hotel and hospitality
uses will transform the feeling of Kerry Park and the waterfront. The downtown core will
become increasingly more vibrant as the civic heart of the city.

To quote from the Downtown Plan, ““For Kelowna residents, the downtown is the heart and
hub of the city. It is the key to Kelowna’s unique and authentic identity and to attracting
residents, tourists and investment.” Comments received from Downtown Plan survey
correspondents strongly indicate the importance of 2 dynamic downtown environment for the
citizens of Kelowna, In particular, the waterfront was identified as a major attraction which
contributes to the “Kelowna Brand”.

The proposed hotel will increase commercial activity on the waterfront, stimulate year-round use
and create a vibrant and energetic public realm which supports both existing and ncw open
spaces. This will have the added benefit of responding to public concern for an increased sense
of safety in this area.

With a striking elliptical form set within a podium massing that steps down and gestures to Kerry
Park, Bernard Avenue and the waterfront, together with a material palette that draws from the
natural beauty of the Okanagan Valley and builds on the local vernacular, the new downtown
hotel project will significantly reinforce the identity of the city and contribute to the emerging
“Kelowna Brand”.

As described by one survey respondent, “Vibrant downtowns are social hubs that breathe energy
and ideas into a place.” That is the kind of downtown that this project aspires to!

300 — 1460 Pandosy Street, Kelowna British Columbia VIY 1P3 | Phone: 250 763 1400 Fax: 250 861 5020 | Email: mait@wesicorp.net

27




£1009) 193r0dd
ally :N_mﬂv— POIZOFIOT
,m 0¥

FEREITRLLEN

28

e ‘BUMO|3Y
|B1OH UMOIUAMOQ BUMO|
ATANNS YOI

CEIE-00L IHOMD VIRNOTTH 133:18 IV L6 83E1CRE
‘au Bupfenng put] RIERPOD W'd

HA1IVM

1334528

/ﬁ s0zs1
,_
|
|

s er OF @ 8 050
INNIAV  duvNY38 f=— =] eses=ssEsd
e Mt et e e U ,
| I A _ Frmms N oos: FVOS
: | | v i | | ™
el b A | “
” G ! ' i I | 1 1 7 1 ,...,,
: colgs WIS | e | ;o1 0%y ! £ “ N
! y | | [LPETINTId ) " zq_ﬂ;, ! NI N
! ,, pog ﬂ b Lo . B J
| L R A N N
: I | . | [ 2 LONEACO & ! B
| i I Lol B cmodom | : ~
m Dazdesl , N R O o |- m
) Dasva | | b 12 _ 51S0F  NY1d N
1 | ' ! ! T NEREEYE O _ ! .
SRR IR N [ S R : ;L-I“:.-.n.: L pryrresll ! .
a7 QaSodaud e e = B
.............. & \ / ; g
i —-—-= T oo~~~ e e T / s
I i | WEER I 5 / <
| o | A 4
_ | _ | \.. N AN \,\
_ ¢ OB gog 1 Nwd / N
i 1N ! g
I R | / / ~ /
_ | ! | I/ A . Ve
m . | _ W \ ....wwd \\ . . \\
| | 4 ~ S
_ | ! | / / L0TT N . o
| ,V | | / / s T
L | prreey | / \ L 7
// IIIIIIIIIIII e T T e ! \\ s
s / S
A 2 .fwao & A s
= ayod gIso10 a3s0dodd i e J
\ o8s w2 e / S Vs )
km//fsw.ra oo ﬁwww\%, \_\ \ Y YD NVIVNYHO
st RPN ; i /
! INNTAY AVMSNTING O peeeam . /
_ e O3NS 7 \ : y
- L YNMOTIM 40 ALID
e o . INNIAY AVMSNIZN0 ANV
" ¢ nﬂm NV e J 133418 TN 40 Shdvd 40 NS00
gl 4 avou 0ISOd0Ud ONIMOHS NV 1d



29

—_————

N a™ - a3 3o Ay dse. 0 AL Aisdud posoded SUL o PPSING STRIE
0'0-1 e R M R SR R
oy
100k oowiL
on ot s
o |
f— @
de il i
kg ummg oty 233|okt )
uz]q AU
adedspue]
]
1330H 193435 1IN
BUMO|D)Y 3 SEORY DT
= . i L — — E
R F B o
| By
B TN &Yl # Nuueg
oo N CK féfﬂo s
i IR ewdojeasp jo yed suuoj Siyl
awa “ora e AN N 1
PLOTAOTO gawppansd 1 ooy R | | .
TAILINED 4oy pansiy 2 / 1 i
U : ’ |
; Lot LS B : : —
=3 s e - " i - e
w -
| ; ! _ “
[ ) .
3 -
- ¥
—paml = AT R UOUTUE UG A
Sta!&..-ﬁzsshﬁ
9 0, 3wt Bugig. LLOM,
s_i.‘-l.-lj
s B
....
e el - P
Foning 33/} UTIM PAMI 38 0L peXy
! aMILIRDddR S suia0] e ussind el |
a5, pasodol 7
s dujnury B
BT aroraie sivmpai "
TR o - i TR PRUIEIEI 8 4GP AP B33 @
i :
-qr—-m [ 5 e B




30

opeeus
Lkl o0ziL
o qar S
I
A PHIYD
Arrwr
Jg uwei upion eI

ueld adesspue
|2AS punaln

1o Dupamig

[910H 190435 1IN
eumolaN

g 2¥lon

rsiEpom pw A

Slapesen 4 Bty

BirELTe L anpansnl R
T, 4 7 rwncuds

P e

V+d

" olLvd
¥vE

S3LON uza«.m

e %...._uma fapqusuodsns 2 aq fji auy Aadasd passdasd a3 Jo spisino se
1o ol ereads B LBytad) Hyioa M1 Hizh UCRRABARH Shonad Ty s Y03 UBE2p 8\:
31 i ’

EmE o_m>mu ,5 wed S0} syl

oA e

>

ﬁ:

31=

.rLIu}

ERECURS
EupHEN 12 A

S

— AERIHE NS
e

Nras

B Mk £18Y
posodois

Rt

———gzal]

La b
[Llen]

‘Y RLAE T

Aemawad
$jgounD) e

Vi —

g\? ot
£

uszs..__ul -

< (AL AT,

st 10 A 3U3 40 Famanugdsas 3 o)
i UQA3NI3SUAY pue uBjeary fpa _Fanuu:o.
UGS DR SRUPWIDIES VI

i

Il:- %Egui
.H.-.—P_th_!.t.i

e a...#s.mﬁ

o |

WY AMEEA

= - _
A Pruisyuon o

e sda e Suoiiesl Sa B 10N

.Euaaas. _
SR — .

pusten LL




31

L -1

oot ool
vop T HIms

i
g Az
arywr

g whag o B0

ueld aderspue
£ Ao IPAR

g fuweein

1230H 122415 (1IN
eumo[aN

wrg “anvamAy
2LOORT 4q 4y ponsi| ¢
FLozmoes 4 404 pEAEIRH T

iﬂz

0350 pUR U

850 led Mgy Yl uoneibsiuy o o 51235 113U uBisap WL
3LON

"RUMCTREY 3O acho Ayljjqisuotsa. 2ya B f|ve 34)] Asdad pR10de,d AU} 40 IPEING STRT ;ﬁ
I
T

l1p

200 -HI0N0/1<1

-7 uawdd

[onep jo ye

=y

aﬁ% yused)

WO} SILL

L-ﬁ-' i F

AT TR .:;_..lll ¥
B [ B3O dming
N
L
- L. o o

- TR T
AL W
jecildng gEd

DT

e
ig
iE
¥

£ i e = L]

Rura0(3) 40 1D BUA 40 Gaisu
ueiniLa gur ubjsaq e
DS Pa2 SWIBIRNS I T dd

iadsaa ay 3G
tymsdssas
Lag o |




32

-1

#g ummad yuon BaL

uejd adesspue
t 12A97
o Do

—_——— e —

19304 10345 |[lIIN
BUMOISN

PA0TPOTO dg oy pans |
LOEWEY 40 doy pIEY T

o ]
TR 3 By g
RBES T ampen senrimat

J 1o e Seminen,
ol PR E b s mwmeng + Nk

V+d

“eumolz o iy
19 uopIznISuaD pue Ul

o 15!
1390 Hi2d

uosas aya #q ||| 0w Auadosd pasadoud ayd jo FPISING SEEE

Auay YL UOIIBBTIY SO0 0] 81535 Jdaducd UBisap YL
A1ON

No?g\

jueL

E&S ~hid

o#mzm_u po tma wE\é

a# #_E._mm

T;




33

g1

= oozt
vo mor s

ax
e @
el Il

s oty palnag

uejd adeaspue
g |2na1
o Tupwa.q

—

1930H 19308 |IIN
BUMO[PN

ii sarzpobiad s
HUyes 4 Bupuoy s
05 3 AMERIAN RN

omery
nuE AV ) sy 4 g

eumaras 40 K3 40 KA
39 UOIDNJISIEY PUR WEIEag "I

odivd oys 3 f% auy, Artiaxd pasodaid au) 43 BRIRND TRG 1
oo AL L UaREBaIU] S16WCId G 8985 .u»u:nu uEsep Ayl
319N _

.Eaﬁux&ob_uﬂu.ula.iu&n.;;x._
|14 U PUE UBIFa i A ENYe
WD BUB SBIBAGE frzd iy E.n:.._




34

R ———

S

.‘ ‘.||

sandarda far nursery fotk and tha DOV standands for contalner
. Gregun, Colliomia and Brikish CalUmbla, Nurtry te previde

200 recamméeibions pravided

iired plant maneesl, wees, o7 lurt

ke serooth, Wukh 40 be 'S5 doresned.

se free from the um
aln £ra virue 1o he ot tha centfacier's

i it sacks [ promots tntegr

witn Kenry Park Desgn snd corstraction of || 3
areas putsids of the propased property line be the responsibility o

City of Kelownz. arch area 1o Includa S, Wi . 0

P+A

Tary e duios St 03SSA BN e
i Vammase, BG Vo1 TR
Licans ckitary T AR
S ming Tanune
b miscocrace

Pra|ect Thia:
Kelowna
Mill Street Hotel

Srenig T
Planting Plan
Ground Level
pre SramEr
msip
T
. KP
saale b Ma.:
1:200 14081
shogyKa,;

L-2.0




L
(98}

. P+A

Pury + mscales Sulle 200-1 190U BN dvenun
Vineal Vel 1RE
Lundocag pvepisctune Y B3
StoPhreig F
e et e s

s
i 3 Badssued for BF 0RIDEZ014
09 1 tgsued for bF aarbAnbi
i Rewiian He. Eate

COPVAKIKT RESERVED
i Thi ceapang Ty 21

Kim
Az,
do
o or alteriilom 19 ot
pupe S prlec bl
e Ghaat of & Xl Parry B
Clnt:
—_— - Troject e
| Kelowna
Mill Street Hotel
Croing Tt
Ceuricgar Planting Plan
Level 5
NOTE: Kemy Park [mproverments are shown
conceptuslly anky. Design and canstructlon wi s and planing an Ci of Kelzims Property dublect ta Gy apnransl Jor 76 sorform 82 8 MRl the standards s farth In the Iatest adllan e the
b the rasponsibility of the City of Kelowna, lar ard planting te b ta BEALA/RCSLA Standard Specificatlons
i 1 Clty of Kelewnz E according 1o 1he CHTA standardy for nucsry saek and the ACLAA ptanclards for camlalner
WYBSHingtan, Gregn, Califorh|a Bnd British Columbia, Nurwry o provide
n e comsldared. Frafect ot Drawn by
" uo__ml_nn.nm minimum slzes. IM7IP
% uds ——
.| e = hsos and e et rovipwed and approves by the onsutant gray e Inwaling
v i 00 Kax N bevted for AioPicie e, g, gnl Rurlent fauel4 214 recommendatlans arcs hecked by
# | P to scomRNble mereiautiurs! gty far the deaied alont materal e, &f urt KP
! | i riracisr 18 ansura ol plant materia] e 51 i from prsesies eertflag 10 be free from
H | orumy virws (sudden o Romial ard replatarnent of plant. ed faricit 5 Stoles Joh Ms
! tain the vl To be 2t rvctor expenie e ompaosted Dfi mich on afl hrub bids aRte! planting sad roke smastt, Mukh to be '%.5mm sorecied 1200 18001
H i Padfle Soll peasted bark raddr, -
H L e S imend o soll anai &1 amandmanes & Comretter {1 piant magarin dellvered tote |t 12 e fram ramorm o
o e 2t datel hined. Eantactor shall instrcs il testing Iab te submit redulty B ien Gk st Remaual ond feplasaman of plant matsilal found ta contaln tha virli 1o ke ot the centractar's *
HOTE X lyze tar aaprowl prior T, Genaric Anatyes ks not sipense.
“The design cancent seeks to pramote integration with Kerry Par esign and constructian of eptaek, 4 i Londscape Arehitect.
araas ouside of the proposed property line will be tha respansiblity of Cty of Kelowna. Plant Search area to-Indlude BC, Wik, OR & LA 105 All Briste planting a . 1 -2,




O
(98}

conceptually
be the respoms

IMprovements ara shown
eclqn end constructlan wil
ity uf the City o kelovna.

Aeanap Macranks Zore
23]

P+A

Pomy + Aesta S 200 YRS Avann
Sy, B VI R

Lmano Archiiecur T B 1nAT
S menning 7 Gaming
i SRR

des
‘adaiticns e sheratior bo the project

gy L=y
Furagse ot any oo prolucs o'
EHREY cansent @1 Tl Poery B ARbcelptes e
e

ASIH LANE
oo
b } in— Kelowna
Hydrezans Legend: Mill Street Hotel
E H | High Water Conguinptlan - 0m2
wvater Consumptlon - 323m2
nhﬁw s of drough ol Sraning Tl "
‘ater Consumptien - SU1m2 Water Conservation and

1| aw rofliesesuan Green foos, 100mm
el s dleprehh ma)

i NOTE
The deslgn concept saeks 1o promete integration with Kerry Pai

and ion of

Irrigation - All Levels

areat outsice af the proposed property line will be the retpans] ty of Kelowina,

Hydrozone Notec:

This plan is imended ta lllustrate the extent of |andscape planting areas that require differant
irrigation neads.

This plan fz

stratlva purposes only, not to be wsed for construction or pricng

Refer 1o planting plans for plants epacles and required soll depths

Plantad aress wo have a 50mm depth tayar of mulch te assist in moistune retention In all shrub
ani green roof areas.

Frofect Hanh; Draw By
M
Checked By:
KP
scale; Johtla:
1:2a0 14001
Shest o

L-3.0




01

on s
kL
ron s
e
4 PRI
drywr
A yrera] waiey Delud
sabew] Juapanald
adeaspue]
oL Bupmaig.
1230H 1968415 (1IN
EUMD|IN
1 50708

FIoTFITD 4 405 penss) L
PI0ZSOR0 4Q o pANSESY 2

Bl

ent

Jove W00z

C

This forms part of develo,

)ULE _
H-0024

D

-
=]

ol

Permit # -N"

21 194 g e,
onumer s AN AT WO v s




AF { ‘-1.“: B s i oSPUAnl FARE ./' s Y]
- [} -Ir_l l."‘ : ,L-
} " I, S N
-+ ._,\ I.'Z . | II ey __
3 : > .-.;r\ = ¥ S [ =
/ ' ( — | B | W |
i .". J F
it Retain existing asphall crosswalk this Area, b i
acgust mdhmiutranﬁlllnnﬁiﬂroposé’u {‘ e — |
[ Karry nﬁcpmrlngasnaadad. : \ - =
\ J LTSRS, A
GUEENSWAY
==
" | Exisling Kerny Park poving — Trrten]
etgma sting sidewalk, adjust
ra to'fransitian ta pro [l
erry mh [:uavlrlg aaﬁd __Il.l'.—u i r"l f i
\i s [ I | I [LLE s,
o \ 1.':_ || 1 | .-.--—.-.I_‘_‘ : ;
§ - ; 1\ )
| = ; '::]
L] ! L
I_ _ = =R
At S .
-2 1 '
] i s _ [  § l - 1]
'-U_' =T
it : ‘
A | , |. ==k ‘
i remove asphfll—1—== Ny !
)/ paving addzod | / - e
i { s ]
i 4—-,\ I s 1 [ | :
i L [ i
{ ;ﬁm}ntal&qﬁa?—-ﬂ. x |—. 1 | i
. - I"1 iy by | |
; I . ; p
i ¢

Ij 853sgm Concrete Unit Paving
-_ 152sqm Cast Concrete Paving

[ 116sqm Basalt Paving
- 254sgm Planting

E 258sqm Sodded Lawn

(ERRY PARK

B
-.'.lur O aEinITT
L0 bt Ao

C

SCHEDULE
) Th}s forms part of develo

covered |r1
cost eshmate

5 ent
permt #1DP -oou—ﬁrr)'um‘)bwtf

Date: Scale: Project No.: Drawn By: Cherked By: Project North: Sheet No.:
08/05/2014 1:600 14-001 JP KP
Project Title:
Parry + Assodates 200-1558 W. 6th Avenue Mill Street Hotel - Kelowna LS K...O 1
Vancouver, BC V&) 1RZ
- . Drawing Trle:
Landscape Architecture T 6047384118 .
Site Planning F 604 738 4116 Landscape Costing Area - Kerry Park 2C BE




39

Mili St and Barmard Ave

View from Kemy Park fiew from Water St, looking North View laoking down Queansway towards Matina View of Maring and site from water.

Marina decking farlna roof and structure

Marina glu-lam and decking

Aerial view of site in relation to Marina
Context Photos A04 t%

<<mm~8~._u . Kelgwna Downto
wert Hotel 2014/02/04
Kelownz, BC PROJECT 160013 zmm—m:




40

VIEW DESCRIFTION

This view of the project illustrates

how the propesed fower and podium
interface with Ketry Park with the
rotunda ‘lantern’ form stapping down

ta create a backdrap and focal paint

in sgale with the park. Viewed from
above, primarily by hotel rooms and
poesibly from a distance by future tower
developmants, the green roaf of the
confierance cantre ensures an atiractive
view from hotel roams while conference
room patio and pool, with its outside
relaxing area and bar adds to the
enjoyment of the park and waterfront.
The elliptical tower form stands as
iconic landmark efemant visually and
actively connecting downtown with the
wateriront as 2 single cohesive urban
composition.

Kelowna Drowniown Holel 201402104

E%% v v d Aerial from Kerry Park / Foot of Bernard Avenue A-31 t%
b Kslowna, BC prosect 03| IKQASHAT



41

VIEW DESCRIPTION

The proposed hotel tawer and podium
integrate with the Bernard Ave block
and surrounding context while still
adding their own distinctive character
10 the downtown Kelowna experience,
This integration is achleved by means
ofthie decreased scale of the podium
teraces stepping down towards
Bemard Avenue and the adjacent
Kelly O'Bryén's Pub. The final terrace
is scaled so as o be al the same
height or lowar than the secand starey
Kelly O'Bryan’s patic, providing &
respectiul integration with the adjacent
property owner. The varety of form,
texture, materlal and colour of the
podium provides an additional level of
character to the proposed hatel, and
were selected as being in keeping with
the Okanagan palette. The rotunda
addresses Kerry Park, complementing
the form of the tower and providing a
landmark on the pedsstrian edge, as
well as a ‘lantem’ at night.

View from Bernard Ave A-32 V%

Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014/02/04

< o Kelowna, BC PROJECT 160013 —Am m— m —.—




42

VIEW DESCRIPTION

This view highlights the variety of

hotel scale and form that addresses
Kenmry Park, from the slegance and
slenderness of the tower, to the
rotunda which provides the element
around which the various hotel forms
ars composed. The verticality of the
flreplace chimney is the ancher point
for the scale transition towards Bernard
Ave and Kelly O'Brvan's. The fireplace
itsalf provides the feeiing of an autdoor
living room on the park. The reduced
scale, as wel as the materials used,
harmonizes with the existing heritage
architecture. The park pedestrian
walkway s completely integrated

with the podium, creating a vibrant
outdoor experience which pravides

& lively backdrop to the grassy stage
area. The activity on the hetel podium
terraces overiccking the park enhances
this degree of integration.

L o View from Kerry Park A-33
<<mm_.,n.0_._u N Kelowna Downtown Hatel 2014/02104 V*
e 5 Keiowna, BC PROJECT 160013 mhm m—m—.-



View from the Water
Kelowna Downtown Hotel
Kelowna, BC

A-34
20140204
PROJECT 1860013

43

VIEW DESCRIPTION

Set back from Kerry Park and
integrated with the highly activated

and transparent podium, the slender,
elliptical tower form anchors the
development and marks the entry fo the
holel at the foot of Queensway Avenue.
The pattern of alternating balcanies
and the top of the tower, articulated

by the trellis features, provide visual
interest and reinfarca the landmark
quality of the proposed develapment.
The stepping form of the padium hrings
the scale of the development down

to the park with the ‘lanter rotunda
creating & highly visible focal point. The
coffee shop 1o the south, accentuated
by thae stone fireplace element, forms

a 'llving room' further integrating the
development with Kerry Park. Wood
accents, terraces and trellis features
create warmth and activaie the
development with a uniquely Kelowna
senss of place.

()

Kasian



44

VIEW DESCRIPTION

This view dramatically highlights the
warmth, presence and inviting fesi of
the hotel and the Kerry Park edge. The
extens/ve hotel lobby glazing, which
will apen up during summer, blurs

the transltion between the Indoar and
outdoor actlvities of the hotel and park.
The wood theme structures of the parte
cochere complement the architecturg of
the marna close by an the waterfrant.
This view aisc shows how the scale

of the hotel hegins to transition down

to the park as it funs to cornar toward
Bemard Avenue.

Wi _‘—u View toward the Hatel Lobby A-35 thﬂ

Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014/02/04

Kelowna, BC PRCJECT 160013 zmm-m:



View from Stuart Park
Kelowna Downtown Hotel
Kelowna, BC

A-36
2014/02/04
PROJECT 160013

45

VIEW DESCRIFTION

The textured balcony patterns of the
landmark tower rising from the highly
sctivated and transparsnt pod lum will
form a lively backdrop 16 the south end
of Stuart Park oppasite the new Yacht
Club under construction to the north.
Togethar, the two projects will reinforce
Stuart Park as & significant urkan
public open spacs on the waterfront.

At grada a dramatic cantlievering port
cochare canstructed of wood theme
beams will mark the entrance 1o the
hotel and create a focal peint en the
turnahout proposed for the terminus of
Queensway Avenue. Migway on the
padium a long herizantal balcony with
wood finishes will further aclivate Stuart
Park tagether with & large rooftop
terrace serving the conference centar.

b

Kasian



O
4

VIEW DESCRIPTION

Viewed from City Hall and the northeast
comer of Queensway and Water

Street, highly articuiated forms and
architectural features create an urban
presence, extending fhe cammercial
core of the City north alang Water
Strest. A strong mixed-use glement
featuring retail and apariment hotel
units creates a highly active and
transparent base. Echaing the lantern
element facing Kerry Park and the
walerfront, a slender rotunda feature
gestures towards City Hall at the comer
of the intersection and marke the
transition to ihe conference center. The
rotunda transforms vertically to create
an interesting view point from the
conferenca temrace level an the padium
roofiop.  Adramailc cantilever feature
soars over Water Street, creating a
unlque polnt of Interest bath from the
exterior as well as fram the interior at
the comierence level where prefunctian
spaces will have & ‘kaleidoscope’ view
of the city. Patlos and decke animate
ihe fagade, while rounded adges and
warm materials soften the building,
making it part of the landscape and a
uniquely Kelewna experiance,

wigw fram Gity Hall corner of
Quesnaway and Waler st

b View from Queensway & Water St. A-37 v ;
y i Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014/02/04 )

Kelowna, BC PROJECT 160013 *mm—m:



47

VIEW DESCRIPTION

human scaie experience as the
pedestrian approaches the hotel. The
rotunda at the corner of Water and
Queensway complements the eliiptical
tower form ssen in the background
and at an urban scale is a formal nod
towards City Hall.

v

—

1

4

View from Queensway A-38 v :
/)\@W&S—.—u Kelowna Downtown Hatel 2014/02/04 .m..rﬂ. v
— Kelowna, BC FROJECT 180013 zmm—m:




Nighttime View from the Marina
Kelwna Downtown Hetel
Kelowna, BC

A-39
2014/02/04
PRQJECT 160013

VIEW DESCRIPTION

\iewed from the lake and the
Downtown Marina at ¢usk and in the
evening, the elegant and glender
curving form of the tower with the
malestic trellis featured af the tap,
together with the curving from of the
ratunda facing Kerry Park will be
accentuated by soft light creating
a tantern effect simitar to the smali
bulidings on the lzke supporing ihe
new marina. The soft curves and
Indirect lighting will complemant the
Sails sculpture and the gently sloping
the distance washed by the
setting sun. The compasition of form,
ght and materials together with the
eplace feature ancharing the low form
of the coffee house adjacent to Kelly
O'Bryan’s will transform Kerry Park
into an outdsor living room. Aliving
room animaied by the saunds of music
and concerts in the Park on summer
evenings.

Sk
Kasian



10 AM

12 PM

2PM

MARCH 21 SEPT 21
N \L\%inqr_uh,.mf,.f \Uﬂnnﬁmﬁuﬂf
P . - /1/07
: J/ ﬂﬂ N\
7l ® %
w _r._u_ — T
m_ q__ ¥ |

Shadow Analysis A-43
Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014/02/04
Kelowna, BC PROJECT 160013

49

vk
Kasian &



C7 - Proposed Setback Variances above 15m

. Areas representing encroachment into 3.0m setback (See bylaw refarence below]

Assumptions!  Variances are based on proposed property lines as illustrated.

Bylaw Reference! Consolldated Zoning Bylaw No, 8000, C7 ~ Gentral Business Gommerclal, 14.7.5 Develepmant Regulations, Section ()
“Any portion of a building above 16 metres in height must ke 2 minimum of 3.0m from any property line abuiting = street, as shown on G7 - Diagram B attached to this bylaw.

The above setbacks will bs measurad from the nearest exterior building face, exclusive of unenclosed balconies.”

LT .

e i Badnd 2 3]

=) B
TTTEA T

L]

3

LEVEL3/F5 LEVEL 4

(8

| _ LLEVEL 5 - HOTEL
C— BALCONY CONFIG. A

LEVEL & - HOTEL
BALGONY CONFIG. B

W —\—U v C7 - Proposed Sethack Variances above 15m A-40 V%

Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014/02/04

| Kelowna, BC PROJECT 160013 xm m—m:




51

C7 - Proposed Setback Variances above 22m

. Areas rapresanting encroachment into 10.0m setback (Ses bylaw reference below)

Assumptions:  Variances are basad on proposed property lines as lustrated.

Bylaw Referenca: Consolldated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, ©7 - Central Business Commercial, 14,7.5
Development Regulatlons, Section ():
“pmy portion of a building above 22.0m In height must maintein a minimum setback of:
(i) 15.0m from any property ling abutting another proparty line.
(i} 10.,0m from any property line abutting & lane.
{iii) 30.0m between mors than one tower on the same property.
The abovi: setbacks will be measured from the hearest extarior building tace, sxclusiva of
unenclosed balconies.”

NS

\

LEVEL 4 MEZZANINE

FLOOR PLAN
Wi —.—U &0y, C7 - Proposed Setback Variances above 22m A1 V%m.
' Ksiowna Downtown Hotel 2014/02/04
o Kelowna, BG PROJECT 160013 :m m—m:




C7 - Proposed Variances: Building Height _ .
Downtown Plan - Comparative Analysis: Building Height

- Areas represeming ancroachment inta 22.0m maximum buitding height.

- Areas representing encroachment above 18 Storay in building height.

Bylaw Feferance: Gonsolidaked Zoning Bylaw No. 800D, &7 - Central Business
L] ial, 14.7.5 D pment Regulations, Section (@)
*The maximurm height is 22.0 M axcept In Area 1 and Area 2, as shown
on G7 - Diagram A and Diagram G, attached to this fylaw,”

City of Kelowna  my Downtown, Fel, 2011, POLICIES, Sectlon 15, Willow Inn Site.
Official Community  “Allow up 1o 19 storeys on the former Willow Inn site at the corner Imhlmwolﬁa‘ 84.0 meters i e S T, monmulmmlmwommmmrwa.o meters
Plan: ot Qugensway Avenue and Ml Street upan demanstration that the
propesed davelapriant gives careful sonsidaration 1o view impacts from
other parts of dewntown, is 2 signature landmark puilding and that it
imeets a high standard of design excellence.”

I yen B Storeys

£1ET5, LEVELIE
L SERTS. LRVEWIT.

__4DeTS. LEVELLL
. LEWEL1D.

BT LEMELE.
...... 28873 JEMELT.

..... 25075, MEVELA.
s LEELL 2200 meters

o it e e ——

@_ Proposed Tower Height for Hotel Tower:
To vary the maximum Luilding height for Tower from 22 mte 81.6m

Hullllllllllnlh.]lﬂl;
. C7 - Proposed Variances: Buitding Height A-42 v.%‘
/2%% Kelowna Downtawn Hotel 2014102104 —Am m— m = v

" Kelowna, BC PROJECT 160013




GrantThornton

An instinct for growth

Westcorp
#300 - 1460 Pandosy Street
Kelowna, BC

V1Y 1P3 Grant Thornton LLP
Suile 1600, Grant Thomton Flace
. . 333 Seymour Sirest
Attn: Gail Temple, Ditector of Development Vancouver, BC
V6B DA4

T+ 604 687 2711
F +1 804 685 6569
January 30, 2014 www,GrantThomton.ca

Dear Gail

Re: Economic impact of the proposed downtown hotel
As requested, we have prepared an update of the econotnic impact calculations, from the
March 2010 Econotnic Impact Study Report.

The following points summarize why a new full service hotel for Downtown Kelowna should
be considered:

o The City of Kelowna continues to grow as a regional centre for the Okanagan and as a
tourist destination within BC. However, there are opportunities to further develop the area
as a premier tourism and conference destination. To re-establish the downtown area as 2
vibrant patt of the city, a mumber of key facilities and amenities are required; one of which
is a high-quality hotel, with meeting and conference space.

o Strong demand for accommodation. The accommodation market in Kelowna has
petformed well over the last three years, with growth of 9.7% in annual occupancy and

5.1% in average room rates.

e Opportunities for a new hotel downtown. There is an opportunity to target a scgment
of the hotel market (a higher end market) which is not adequately served, in Kelowna. In
addition, Kelowna is currently missing out on larger meetings and conferences because it
does not have the room base in one hotel or in adjacent hotels to accommodate all

attendecs.

o Challenges for the developer. Although market research indicates strong demand for
quality hotel accommodation in Kelowna, there are three key challenges facing the
developer:

i There are very few good siies available for a high quality hotel development in
Kelowna {the subject site is the “best”);
i ‘The development costs will be significant (+$65 million); and,

Audit « Tax « Advisory
@ Grant Thoraton LLP. A Ganadian Member of Grant Thornten International Lid. All rights reserved.




o G:rantThornton 2

Aq instinct for growth

i  Financing for new hotels is extremely difficult to access in today’s market
environment, and as the size and cost of the project increase, so does the cost of

borrowing.

o Positive cconomic impact, for Kelowna and Okanagan tegiot.

i The one-time employment and economic impacts to be generated during the

construction phase are as follows:

Construction Phase Impacts: $66.45 Million Development Costs

_ Direct 838 263 1274 6645
_Indiptt 250 wr | 1302 33.71

induosd 135 104 _GA4B 11.06
Tolal 721 B4 a4 | iz

i  The annual opetation of the hotel is expected to generate employment and
economic benefits on an ongoing basis. The estimated, annual employment

and economic impacts are presented below.

Annual Operating Impacts

Direst 28 | 16 B2 1.2
InirEgt &7 a2 28 gmE
Induiced 24 18 14 20
Total . 200 | 224 101 177

i Visitor expenditures in Kelowna by guests of the proposed hotel are expected to
total $20.8 million, anaually or $297 per day per guest. These expenditures are
anticipated to generate additional employment opportunitics and tax revenues,

If you have any questions which atise from the enclosed information, please feel free to contact

us.

Yours sincerely

g‘wﬂm L4

Doug Bastin, CMC
Partner, Grant Thornton Consulting

Audit « Tax » Advisory
© Grant Thornton LLP. A Canadian Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd. All rights reserved.




TRANSPORTATION FLANNERS ANTHEN GINEERS

Mill Street Hotel, Kelowna, BC
Transportation Impact Assessment

Draft Report

Prepared for

Westcorp

Date
March 7, 2014

Prepared by

Bunt & Associates

Project No.
4652.08

55




56




3.1 EXISTING SEEET NEIWOTK o ohersrses oo o0 s 0 s
372  Existing Traffic Volumes ANE OPEIALIONS 1o -rrrvcevevsinssssssseressssos e s T 6
33 WAIKINGunenseesoernssesb oo 9
T 10
T ————————ECRE L S 10
4. DEVELOPMENT PLAN L.ooiiiuemirnssses st s S 12
4.1 Proposed Development COONERIAT .ovoseeeseessssseessesessseeesass eSS 12
8.2 AACORSS oorrosmeessereeseesssr oo e 8880 R 12
5. TRAFFIC IMPACT AN ALY SIS e eaveeeenreeeermsresasreasmn s s R 14
5.1 DVRIOPMENT THP GERAGTALION vrrrirseses s oo srs s s o 14
5.2  Future Traffic Conditions ... e evmeeinieereeeamas e smaansinneit ——— e e 15
£ 21 Future ROAd NETWOrk CRANGES cooirvmsssssmismsesrss s e I
5.2.2 Trips Distribution and ASSIAIMIEI 1o veoocrneessrerers s sesss s 16
5.2.3 Bernard Avenue & Water Street IVHIEIQAEION oo cevernnrmsssrene s s s b s 21
5.2.4 Doyle Avenue & Water Street Intersection Mitigation............... treeeaeeenarne et eeeeeinaaeee et 21
§.3  Traffic OPETAHON SUMTEY .coiesserserssoersoss oo e 0 e 23
6. PARKING werteeeeaesoseseesesnssssssisscasonns s s s 24
6.1 Zoning Bylaw PArking REQUIFEITIENTS wovorioesessesssososs s st o v 24
e L 25
6.2.1 Transportation OPUIONS . oovvvessseeorsssoss s sas s 25
622 HOtel PATKING DEMANG covvvrrrssererensssonsstpss e st e e 25
2.3 Commercial Uses Parking DIEITIANIE ooes e e eesseessbesnsenss b o saa e 26
624  Shared PArKiNG OPPOITUMILY .vv eerismreesssispossssmsss s o 26
LOADING +veeeereeseessesesssssssenseeaesasnamaa s s Eon s S SSS T EEEY 28
TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT Lo 30
SUMMARY & CONCLUSIONS wviaiiramnssnsssinm s s e o 31
Tl T I ———ESEELE S 31
0.7 Parking and LOAGING. ... rireiermrsssssssssss s s s N — e 32
g.3 Transportation Demand Management. ..o e DTN PRSI S 32

Mill Street Traffic impact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

57




THAMSFCH FATIN PLANNERS AND ENGIMEERS

APPENDIX A Traffic VOIIMES . covvriuscessmrsssrssssssmmssssses s o
EXHIBITS

bt 1.1 SIt LOCAEION BN COMMEXL e s 2
Extibit 1 2 DEEIEA SIE LOCATION oo s s 3
Exhibit 3.1 Pedestrian and YNNG ACCESS wreerreerssissses s b e e o 11
e 13
Exhibit 7.1 Loading-AutoTURN ANAIYSES vvorrevesrecmemseesresssemsass s U T PP 29
TABLES

Table 3.1: Study Intersections QA DAL SOUTE . -rererereserereeet s rerssssores st 6
Table 3.2: Existing (2013) Traffic Conditions - Weekday PEAK AM oo oveeeeeecessesemssaems e s 8
Table 3.3: Existing (2013) Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak PM.....ooimimrenes reeenine e e einaena et s 8
Table 3.4: Existing (2013) Queensway Avenue & Water Street: Sidra QUEPUL....coocirrrmss s I 9
bl 3.5+ BUS THANSTE SEIVICE st e 10
Table 4.1: Proposed Development CONEEIIE oo vereessssseeeesseeeees s s RS EESTE
Table 5.1: Development Site Trip CLOTTETAEION .. oveeeeessssssesbesseeemsmesees s eSS0 S
Table 5.2: Estimated Distribution of Site Generated TRAFFIC oo v e

Table 5.3: 2015 Background Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak AM
Table 5.4: 2025 Background Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak AM
Table 5.5: 2015 Total Traffic Conditions - Weekday PEak AM ..o
Table 5.6: 2025 Total Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak AM ...
Table 5.7: 2015 Background Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak PM .
Table 5.8: 2015 Total Traffic Conditions — Weekday Peak PM ..o s ST
Table 5.9; 2025 Background Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak PM
Table 5.10: 2025 Total Traffic Conditions — Weekday Peak PM ... srrsenmmssiassssss s s

Table 5.11: 2025 Background & Total Traffic Conditions - Queensway & Water Street, Sidra Analysis .......c.cocoomres 20
Table 5.12; 2025 Background Traffic Conditions - Doyle & Water ........ RN R R Ty 22
Table 6.1: Bylaw Required PAKING SUMMAIY . oossoorvsssssecremsmsscerssssssssssssss s ettt 24
Table 6.2 Shared Parking ARAIYSIS ..o ssssrersss ST RI PSP PY 27

Mill Street Traffic Assessment Draft Report
hunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 March 7, 2014

58



bunt associares

Milt Street Transporiation Impact Assessment Draft Report
buni & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

59



60




bt associates

INTRODUCTION

Westcorp is proposing the redevelopment of 235 Queensway Avenue, 1470, Water Street and 1476 Water
Street in the downtown area of Kelowna BC. Proposed is the construction of a hotel with supporting
amenities such as a restaurant, a coffee shop, commercial units and conference space. Bunt & Associates
has prepared a Transportation Impact Assessment for the mix of land uses proposed. The jocation of the
site is illustrated in Exhibit 1.1. The Study Area is shown in greater detail in Exhibit 1.2.

For the purposes of this study, it is assumed that the development will consist of 214 hotel rooms, 680 m’
(7,319 square feet) of restaurant and cafe space, 1,684 m? (18,126 square feet) of conference space, and
four Commercial Retail Units that total 378 m? (4,069 square feet).

This Transportation impact Agsassment Study will review the following:
= The Study Area's existing road network and transportation infrastructure;

e Estimates of the development's traffic generation and the subseqguent impact to the adjacent road
network;

s Site design, including multi-modal access; loading and pick-up/ drop off requirements;
» On-site parking supply and parking demand forecasts; and,

s« Transportation demand management strategies.

Mii Strest Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report ]
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

61



Exhibit 1.1: Site Location and context

2 Mill Street Transportation lmpact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

62




bunt associates

Exhibit 1.2 Detailed Site Location

Mill Street Transportation lmpact Assessment Draft Repost
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

63




i PLABNE ML LNCENEERS

BACKGROUND

The City of Kelowna is actively revitalizing its downtown, which includes various changes to the
transportation network. Alterations to the local road network include the revitalization of Rernard and
Queensway Avenues, and the closure of Mill Street to vehicular traffic. The locations of these changes are
shown in Exhibit 1.2.

The Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure (MoTl) approved the closure of Mill Street as part of
Kelowna's Downtown Revitalization CD-21 zone area, which is bounded by: Harvey Avenue, Abbott Street,
Water Street and Queensway Avenue, commonly referred to as “wwaterfront Village rRedevelopment’. The
City of Kelowna approved the closure of Mill Street in November of 201 2 The Mill Street closure is meant
to increase the walkability of the local area and to expand and promote the adjacent lakefront public park
space.

Queensway Avenue, which is to the immediate north of the site, is scheduled for redevelopment in the
summer of 2014. Alterations include the addition of traffic circles at its Water Street intersection as well as
at Queensway Avenue's west termination. The redevelopment of Queensway Avenue will resultin a loss of
on-street parking spaces; these spaces will be compensated with the addition of parkade parking spaces,
in particular the proposed Interior Health parkade at 1430 Eilis Street.

Further changes include the addition of 1,000 Interior Health employees with an office building at Ellis
Street & Doyle Avenue together with a new parkade facility on Ellis Street. Also, the existing parking lot at
the west end of Queensway Avenue is identified as a redevelopment site for Kelowna's visitor centre.

Milt Street Transportation fmpact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 201 4

64




EXISTING CONDITIONS

Existing Street Network

The following provides a description of the existing Study Area street network, where roadway function,
design characteristics and intersection controls, in particular, are discussed within the following report.

o  Mill Street & Queensway Avenue (eastbound stop control);

s Mill Street & Bernard Avenue (southbound stop control);

o Water Street & Doyle Avenue (east and westbound stop control);

s Water Street & Queensway Avenue {currently stop control, modelled as single lane roundabout);
« Water Street & Lane (eastbound stop control); and,

o  Water Street & Bernard Avenue (signalized).

The development site, as illustrated in Exhibit 1.2, is bounded by the existing Mill Street alignment 1o the
west, Queensway Avenue to the north, Water Street to the east, Bernard Avenue to the south and a laneway
along its south edge.

Mill Street is a two way road. It has a four lane cross section with a travel lane in each direction and
metered parking along each side. It borders Kerry Park to its west, which is part of the lakefront walkway.

Queensway Avenue is a two way road. It has an approximate 25 metre width. Between Water Street and
pandosy Street, Queensway Avenue is comprised of (from its south edge to north edge) angled parking, a
eastbound travel lane, a median, angled parking for westhound vehicles, a westbound travel lane then a
paralle! parking lane along the north edge. East of Pandosy Street, Queensway Avenue presently operates
as a transit bus loop; the main bus exchange for buses heading to the Westside, Dilworth, Mission and
Rutland. West of Mill Street, Queensway Avenue becomes a parking lot for the waterfront area and
adjacent parks. The Queensway bus loop is scheduled for redevelopment in 2014. In the future plans,
Queensway Avenue will only accommodate cars between Water and Pandosy, one-way, eastbound.
Similarly, between Pandosy Street and the lane south of Queensway Avenue, it will be one-way to cars
southhound, though buses can travel northbound. Parking on the south side of Queensway Avenue will be
eliminated, though it will be retained on the north. Buses are to enter the roundabout from the east.

Rordering the south end of the study site, Bernard Avenue is an east/west route connecting to City Park.
Bernard operates as a two-way street with non-metered angled parking along both curbs. Bernard Street is
undergoing development, and will change from a four to a three lane cross section. This redevelopment of
the street will allow for wider sidewalks and other pedestrian improvements, including increased street
furniture and vegetation. The Bernard Avenue development is currently scheduled for completion in June
2014,

Mill Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report 5
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

65




THANSPORTATICN PLANNERS AN EMUINEERS

3.2

The laneway which directly boarders the site (to the south of the site) functions as a one-way eastbound
route. The lane is primarily used for loading activity and parking.

The Mill Street & Queensway Avenue intersection currently operates under eastbound stop control, with a
zebra pedestrian crossing on the east leg of the intersection.

The Mill Street & Bernard Avenue intersection operates under southbound stop control, with a zebra
pedestrian crossing for north and southbound pedestrian movements (west and east legs of the
intersection).

The Water Street & Queensway Avenue intersection currently operates under east and west leg stop
control. There is a pedestrian crossing at each leg of the intersection, and zebra markings on the north
and south legs. As mentioned above, this intersection planned for conversion to a single lane traffic
roundabout later in 2014.

The Water Street & Bernard Avenue intersection operates under signalised control, with pedestrian
crossing push buttons at each leg.

The Lane to the south of the site operates with two way travel; however the adjacent Lane to the east of
Water Street operates with just one-way eastbound travel.

Existing Traffic Volumes and Operations

Existing Traffic volumes were obtained from AM and PM Peak hour counts collected by the City of Kelowna
and augmented with a spot traffic counts conducted by Bunt & Associates. The study intersections,
collection data and source are summarised in Table 3.1.

Table 3.1: Study Intersections and Data Source

Water Street & Doyle Avenue July 18" 2012 Clty of kelowna
Water Street & Queensway Movember 10, 2011 City of Kelowna
Water Street & Site Lane February 68", 2012 Bunt Spot Count
Berrard Avenue & Water Street MNavember 10, 2011 City of Kelowna
Bernard Avenue and Mill Stregt MNovember 10, 2011 Clty of Kelowna

These peak hour conditions were factored up to match the July 2012 summer volumes, in order to provide
a conservative estimate of peak summer period traffic operations. The non-summer period traffic volumes
were factored up by 12% and 58%, for the AM and PM respectively.

Mill Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report
hunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

66




bunt assoclates

summer 2013’ volumes.

The Weekday AM and PM peak hour periods were analyzed. Saturday volumes were not included in the
analysis as review of MOT} data sets from the area (south end of Okanagan Lake Bridge} from the past few
years indicate that Saturday peak hour volumes are significantly lower than Weekday PM peak hour
volumes.

The operation of the study area intersections were examined using the described summer period peak
traffic volumes and Synchro 6 software to assess existing traffic conditions for the Weekday AM and PM
peak hour periods.

Analysis is based on the procedures outlined in the 2000 Highway Capacity Manual (HCM). The reported
performance criteria includes a measure of the traffic velume to capacity (v/c) ratio, and a traffic delay
based Level of Service (LOS) measure at each study intersection. A v/c ratio less than 0.90 indicates
acceptable traffic conditions, with sufficient capacity to accommodate demands; a v/c ratio between 0.90
and 0.95 indicates a near-capacity traffic condition with considerable delays and vehicle queuing. A v/c
ratio over 0.95 indicates that traffic conditions are close to saturated or saturated, and traffic demand
exceeds the available capacity. The LOS rating is based on average vehicle delay and ranges from "A",
which represents minimal delay conditions; to "F", which represents congestion and/ or considerable
delays. For urban areas, a LOS of “E" or better and a V/C ratio of 0.90 or less generally represent
acceptable traffic performance.

|
I
The 2012 summer traffic volumes were factored up by a 1.4% annual growth rate to represent ‘existing

Tables 3.2 and 3.3 present a capacity analysis of the examined intersections during Weekday AM and PM
existing (2013) peak hour conditions. It is noted that the Water Street & Queensway Avenue intersection
was modelled as a roundabout due to the approved plans to implement a roundabout at this location.

Mill Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report 7
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2614

67




ATIIN AN

Table 3.2: Existing (201 3) Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak AM

fwerall Intarsection Critical Movemeant
Intersection Avarage Delay
verageDelay | o | 155 | Movement | w/c | LoOS
{sec)
Mi Bernard
i 5 . A Southbound 009 A 9.4

{Southbound Stop Contral)

Water & Quesnsway

- 34 A thbao 0.
{Roundabout Contral) i Nerthiaumsi &
Water & Lane -
’ ; L3 Eas d 02 i
{Eastbound Stop Control) bl Kb . 5 UL
= d ¥
Water L EeTmar 0.3 AT | S Eastbolnd 040 B 1035
(Signalized)
Dayle:& Water (East and 21 ) A westbound D05 & 173

Westbound Stop Control)

Table 3.3: Existing (2013) Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak PM

Intersection
Average Dela Dala
yeraglitisy V/IC Movement ViC LOS Y
(sec.) (sec.)
5.9

Mill & Bernard

- c thbound 4 .
{Southbound Stop Control) SOuthovuH . E G

Water & Queensway

; - 0.5 B Northbound 057 = =
(Roundabout Control) & BrHTHONNG
Water & Lang E
0. th 0. 174
{Eastbound Stop Contral) % A Easthound e .
Witer & Bervard 1.5 060 &  Solthbound 068 B 142
{Signalized)
Doyle & Water (East and
i . W d 0.63 E 8
Westbound Stop Control) ’ : esthoun s
8 Mill Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report

bunt & associates | Project No, 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

68




bunt associares

The intersection of Queensway Avenue & Water Street was also analyzed using Sidra Intersection 6, a
micro-analytical, network analysis tool. Sidra Intersection allows for a more accurate analysis of single-lane
and multi-lane roundabouts via its combined (hybrid) geometry and gap-acceptance modelling approach in
order to take inte account the effect of roundabout geometry on driver behaviour.

The Sidra output for Water Street and Queensway is summarized in Table 3.4

Table 3.4: Existing (2013) Queensway Avenue & Water Street: Sidra Output

Average Delay Bela
o Y1 vic | ros v | Los ¥
(sec)) (sec.)

5.5 0.30 & Westhound 0.06 B 10.6
PM 6.3 0,50 A Morthbound .43 A 5.5

As suggested by Tables 3.2, 3.3, and 3.4 all Study Area intersections currently (Summaer 2013) operate
within capacity during the most critical Weekday AM and PM peak hour periods. The intersection of Doyle
Avenue & Water Street nears capacity for the westbound movement in the PM peak hour period. This is
due to the substantial opposing north and southbound volumes, which are present especially in the
sutmmer months.

3.3  Walking

Typicaily, people are willing to walk 5 to 10 minutes for daily trips (transit, shopping, etc), which
translates to approximately 400m to 800m in distance.

exhibit 3.1 shows the extent of downtown Kelowna that is within this 800m area from the proposed site.
This larger 800m zone represents a typical distance people are usually willing to walk as a commute or as
a component of a commute, to a transit station. Clearly, there is a significant arca of downtown Kelowna
that lies within a reasonable walking distance for future hotel guests, employees and visitors. A wide
range of amenities are also within reasonable walking distance, with pedestrian facilities provided on all
streets in vicinity of the site location {crosswalks, paths and sidewalks).

walk Score is a method of evaluating a location's walkability by using an algorithm that awards points
based on the distance to amenities such as grocery stores, schools, shops, recreation opportunities, banks
and restaurants. The Mill Street development site receives a 100 score out of 100 placing it in the ‘Walkers
Paradise' category.

There are various downtown improvement projects, at various stages of approval or completion which will
further improve the existing pedestrian environment. These include Stuart Park Phase 2 redevelopment,
the Downtown pier/marina and the closure of Mill Street to vehicle traffic as previously discussed.

Mill Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report 9
bunt & associates | Praject No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

69




TRANSPCHTATICN HLA padbees AN ERCGIMEERS

3.4 Cycling

Exhibit 3.1 also shows the cycle route facilities in the context of the development sit
long the lakefront. Additionally,
bike lane and the Cawston Avenue off-road

connected with an off-road, paved bike lane which runs a
to the main north-south cycle corridor, the Ric

paved, east-west cycling route.

3.5 Transit

The proposed site is located approxi
Queensway Exchange is a significant
summarizes the bus transit routes it curren
implemented as phase | of the RapidBus project.

Table 3.5: Bus Transit Service

TES Dastination
Routa
1 Mission Recreation
Exchange

2 Ellis 5t & Cambridge Ave
& A

7 Orchard Park Mall

9 Orchard Park Mall
10 Fitzpatrick & Findlay Rd
n Cralg Rd & McCurdy Rd

Mill Street Transportation fmpact A

10

mately 200
destination and transfer pointin downtow!
tly services. It is al

25

30
20

40

30

hter Street

AM Peak
Freguency

15

15-55

17

MA- Shopper
Shuttle

15

15

M Peak
Fraguency

15

60

15-30

MA- Shopper
Shuttle

15

15

m from the Queensway Bus Exchange. The existing
n Kelowna. Table 3.5
so the terminus for the RapidBus service

SAT
Freguancy
30

60

30
65

30

&0

bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March

&. The site is well-
it is within 800m

ssessment Draft Report

7,2014

70



bunt associates

Exhibit 3.1 Pedestrian and Cycling Access

11

Mill Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & asscciates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

71




HAMSPLIR TATICN PLANRERS AMD ENGIMEEHS

4. DEVELOPMENT PLAN

4.1 Proposed Development Content
The proposed development’s main land use consists of hotel units. The hotel is developed with supperting
amenities including a restaurant, a coffee shop, conference space and a spa. The development also
includes 4 small retail units. Eight of the hotel units may service long term stays, for the purpose of this
report, due to their size and expected function they are grouped into the hotel component of the
development. The proposed development is summarized in Table 4.1.

Table 4.1: Proposed Development Content

Hotel 214 rooms
Restaurant 473 it
Coffee Shop 207 m?
Conference ).684 m'

Retail (four units) 378 m’

The four retail units will front Water Street. The remainder of the land uses including the coffee shop and
restaurant will be within the hotel complex. Parking for all components of the development will be within
the parkade structure. Five of the hotel parking spaces are within its porte cochere.

4.2 Access

The most recent site plan for the project is illustrated in Exhibit 4.1, shows vehicular access to the
development and its parkade from Queensway Avenue. Earlier development schemes had a higher portion
of residential units which were to be accessed from the rear lane south of the site which connects with
Water Street; this is no longer the case alleviating potential issues with left movements to and from the
lane and Water Street. The lane will remain open o permit loading activity for the proposed development
as well as the existing adjacent com mercial land uses to the south of the lane, e.g. Kelly O’'Brien's Pub.

The hotel’s drop off zone or porte cochere is also located along Queensway Avenue. The porte cochere
zone and valet will provide the temporary parking needs of approximately five vehicles, plus curbside
ioading for passengers.

] 2 Mill Street Transportation lnpact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

72




bunt AS50CIALES

Exhibit 4.1 Site Plan and access

13

Mill Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

73




JHIATRON PLANNERS ANE ENLINEERS

5. TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS

5.1 Development Trip Generation

Traffic generation was estimated using Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) trip generation rates in
conjunction with observed vehicle assignment patterns. Trip generation estimates of the proposed
development calculated with ITE trip rates are provided in Table 5.1.

ITE rate 310 (Hote!) was used instead of the Resort Hotel category to account for the development’s
conference facility. A 20% discount was applied to the ITE hotel rates to account for the downtown location
of the hotel. This 20% deduction is consistent with the parking allocation of the development where
parking bylaw reductions are permitted for Kelowna’s downtown region.

The proposed restaurant and coffee shop were grouped together and vehicle trips estimate by applying
the ITE trip rate reported for quality, sit down style restaurant land use. The predicted 30 or so vehicle
trips in the PM peak hour period is consistent with parking demand estimates for this type of use within a
hotel setting (9 parking spaces with an approximately three to four total in and out trips per parking
spaces per peak hour). In the AM peak hour period approximately 3 trips are estimated. This is considered
realistic for a weekday morning as most of the patrons are expected to be guests of the hotel, or people
who work in the near vicinity.

Although the Saturday peak hour period is not examined in this traffic impact analysis, the trip generation
estimates for the Saturday mid-day peak hour period are presented for comparison purposes.

] 4 Mill Street Transportation lmpact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & associates § Project No, 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

74



bunt associates

Size Total
iSo.fr) Peak Hour

or sa.ft or 2-Way
(Units) per unit} Trips

Hotel Rooms jr:,:s PM TE (310} 0.48 S1% 49k Bl 42 103
Sat 0.58 56% 44% 69 55 124
Hotel 7.319 AM 0.41 50%  50% 2 i 3
Restaurant &  sq.ft. oM [TE@31) 375  67% 3% 18 9 27
Coffee Shop  (680m’)
Sat 5.41 sg%  41% 23 17 40
Hotel 18,126 A included . - 0 0 0
Conference sq.0t PM in Hotel 0 0 0
{1684m") Rate®
Sat - . . 0 0 i
Commercial 4,069sgft  AM 0.70**  66% 33% 2 1 3
Sat 2T S0%  S0% 6 5 11
AM 57 39 96
Total PM 84 57 141
Sat 98 77 175

*ITE 310 (Hotel} description, “supporting facilities such as meeting and banquet rooms or convention facilities”.
** There is no AM rate for ITE 826, therefore rate was derived from ITE Shopping Centre 820.
#+% There is no Saturday rate for ITE Specialty Retail 826 therefore the PM rate was used as an approximation.

As presented in Table 5.1 the proposed development is expected to generated approximately 96, 141 and
175 total two-way trips per Weekday AM, Weekday PM, and Saturday peak hours, respectively.

5.2  Future Traffic Conditions
Future traffic analysis examined the traffic impact of the development during Opening Day (2015) and
Opening Day plus 10 year (2025). A 1.4% annual growth rate was appiied to existing volumes to forecast
future background traffic volumes. The assumed 1.4% rate results in future Year 2030 traffic volumes on
Water Street similar to those predicted by the EMME regional transportation mode! used by the City of

Kelowna.

Mill Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report ] 5
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 ) March 7, 2014

75




[UANERCETATIIN PLANNERS AN ENGINEERS

5.2.1 Future Road Network Changes

As mentioned prior, the Water Street & Queensway Avenue intersection is to be converted to a single lane
roundabout. All background and total future scenarios model this intersection with the roundabout
configuration. All future traffic scenarios were also modelled assuming Mill Street is closed to vehicular
traffic. Existing traffic using Mill Street was largely reassigned through the Bernard Avenue & Water Street
intersection.

52.2 Trips Distribution and Assignment

The assumed vehicle trip distribution for the proposed development is based mainly on existing vehicle
volume patterns in this part of the downtown area. Expected distribution to and from the hotel's access is
based on distribution assumptions summarized in Table 5.2. Tables 5.3 to 5.10 present the forecasted
Background 2015, 2025 Weekday AM and PM peak hour operating conditions.

Table 5.2: Estimated Distribution of Site Generated Traffic

Birectlan AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
To/Fram Outbound/Inbound Outbound/ Inbound
Morth 42%/39% 42%/36%
South 289,/ 30% 35%/215%
East 19%/11%: 13%/18%
West 11%/20% 10%/25%

Table 5.3: 2015 Background Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak AM

overall Intersection Critical Movement

Intersection
Averaae Dela
< ViC Las Movement VG LOS : Y
Delay (sec) (sec)

& .
Water, & Quesn=way = 028 A Northbound 034 -

(Roundabout)
Water & Lane .
: 0.3 A Eastbound 0.0 B 12.0
{Eastbound Stop Cantral) un 2 G
Water & Bernard
il Sl 9.4 038 A  Fastbound 041 B 10.7
(Signalized)
Doyla & Water (East and
) 2.1 - A Westhoynd 013 C 17.9
Westbound Stop Contral)
] 6 Mill Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report

bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 j March 7, 2014

76




bunt associates

Table 5.4: 2025 Background Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak AM

Critical Mpvement
Intersaction
Average
g viC LOS V/C LOS
Delay (sec.)
Water & Queensway A .

Delay
(Sec,)

0. bound 0.
{(Roundabout) 39 Northbound — 0.39
Water & Lane ,
4 thound 03 B 12.
{Eastbound Stop Control) ¢ A Eastboun 0.0 fy
{Signallzed)
Doyle & Water (East and 504 ] " sl . i e

Westbound Stop Control)

Table 5.5: 2015 Total Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak AM

Intersection
Average Delay
erage | e | Los vic | tos | o
Delay (sec.) (58C.)

Water & Queensway

| l

0,37 A Northbound 0.37

{(Roundabout)
Water & Lane -
e : 0.3 A th d 0 C 12.
{Eastbound Stop Control) Fastboun 0.03 4
[ Be
Wace & Benard 9.6 040 A  Eastbound 044 B 8.7
{Sighalized)
Doyle & Water (East and :
2.2 - th .15 19.3
Westbound Stop Control) 2 Westhound;. 10.) =
Mill Street Transportation lmpact Assessment Draft Report ] 7

bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

77




N PLANNERS AMEY ENCINEERS

Table 5.6: 2025 Total Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak AM

Overall Intersection

Intersection Average

w/C

Dalay (sec.)

Water & Queensway

- h 3
{Roundabaut) gt
Water & Lane
0.4
{Eastbound Stop Control)
Water & Bernard .
101 K
(signaljzed) 044
Doyle & Water {East and 2 i

Westbound Stop Control)

m

A Northbound 043 =

A Eastbound  0.03 B 1355
a Eastbound  0.51 B 12.1
A Westbound  0.20 C 23.1

Table 5.7: 2015 Background Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak PM

Overall Intersection

Intersection Average

Delay {sec.)

Water & Queensway

: ] .55
{Roundabout)
Water & Lane 8. -
{(Eastbound Stop Contral) )
Water & Bernard .
e B HovE
{(Signalized) SRE
Doyle & Water (East and i ]

Westhiound Stop Control)

Critical Movemeant
Dela
vic | Los ¥
(sarc.)

8 Sputhbound 055 -

A Eastbound 0.06 C 18.0
B Sputhbound (.70 B 16.0
B Westbound  0.65 E 720

18

Mill Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & assaciates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

78




bunt associates

Table 5.8: 2015 Total Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak PM

Overall Intersection Critical Movement

Intersection
Average Dalay
e : V/E LOS Movement V/C LOS elay
Delay (sec.) {sec)

Water & Queersiwy = 0.51 8  Southbound 081 -

{Roundabout)
Water & Lane 3 A
0. b 0.0 C 19,
(Eastbound Stap Control) # & ol ! ’
d
Water & Bernar 125 0.64 B Southbound 075 B 17.9
iSignalized)
Doyle & Water (East and a9 i B Westbound  0.75 F 094.2

Westbound Stop Control)

Table 5.9: 2025 Background Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak PM
Average . = Delay
i v/C LO5 Movement v/C LOS .
Delay (s58c.) (seL.)

= 0.64 B Southbound  0.64 -

Water & Queensway

{Roundabout)
Wat La 4
ater & Lane 0.5 A Eastbound 010 € 2.4
(Easthound Stop Control)
Water & Bernard : )

o 14.2 0,73 B  Southbound 0.83 C 22.5

{Signalized)
Doyle & Water (East and 55 g Westhound 1.04 F 187.0
Westbound Stop Cantrol) ’ Eastbound 077 F 94.5

Mill Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report ] 9

bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

79




[RANSPOR TATICN PLANNERS AND ENGINEERS

Table 5.10: 2025 Total Traffic Conditions - Weekday Peak PM

e
Intersection
Average pela
g v/c | Los vic | Los 2
Delay (s&c.) (sec.)
0.71

Water & Queensway

c southbound  0.71 . -

tRoundahout)
Water & Lane =
0. th Rl (5] :
s S SOl (1 A Eastbound 0.1 252
. . _
Water & Bernard 16.8 0.78 g Southbound 080 C 306
{Signalizead)
Doyle & Water (East and 256 c Westhound 1.32 J S
Westhound Stop Control) ) Eastbound Q.67 F 69.0

The Intersection of Water Street & Queensway Avente was further analyzed using Sidra software, as in the
existing conditions, to confirm its operation performance. The summary of the highest volumes scenario,
2025 PM, is shown in Table 5.11.

Table 5.11: 2025 Background & Total Traffic Conditions - Queensway & Water Street, Sidra Analysis

overall Intersection Critical Movement
Intersection
Average [ Delay
4 vic | Los | movement | v/€ | LOS X
Dalay (sacC.) (sec.)

PM Background 2025 5.9 0.51 A Northbound 051 A 57
M Total 2025 6.6 0.58 A Morthbound  0.58 A 6.1

In summary, the AM peak hour traffic analysis indicates the background and total traffic operations, for
both horizon years, operate well within capacity.

In the PM peak hour traffic analysis the background and total traffic operations, for both horizon years,
operate well within capacity, with the exception of Doyle Avenue & Water Street and the southbound
movement at Bernard Avenue & Water Street. Mitigation measures for each intersection are provided
helow.

20

Mill Street Transpartation Impact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & assaciates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2074

80




bunt assocliatas

52.3 Bernard Avenue & Water Street Mitigation

Bernard Avenue & Water Street operational issues, forecasted to occur during the 2025 Total condition
scenario, are mitigated through optimization of the traffic signal's cycle length and signal splits. With
signal optimization the overall performance during the 2025 Total Weekday PM peak hour is forecast to
have a V/C ratio of 0.77, an average delay of 15.6 seconds and LOS B. For the most pressurized
southbound movement the V/C ratio is forecast at 0.78 with an 18.8 second delay and LOS B.

52.4 Doyle Avenue & Water Street Intersection Mitigation

For the Doyle Avenue & Water Street intersection the foliowing mitigation measure options were examined
using the AM and PM Background and Total 2025 volumes:

» Four leg stop control;
¢ Roundabout; and
s Addition of a traffic signal.

The results of the alternative traffic control types at the Doyle/Water intersection are summarized in
Table 5.12 for the Background and Total 2025 forecasted traffic volumes.

Milt Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report 2 1
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

81




TEANSPOG TATION PLANNERS AN ENCINELRS

Table 5.12: 2025 Background Traffic Conditions - Doyle & Water

Overall Intersection

Intersection Average 3
V/C LOS Movament V/C LOS
Delay (sec.)

AM Background 2025

Four leg Stop Control 13.0 . B Northbound . B 14.5
Roundabout - .42 A Marthbound 042
Signalization 5.5 0,34 A Westhound (.36 C 0.5

AM Total 2025

Four leg Stop Control 140 . A Morthbound - L 15.8
Roundabout . 0.44 ) Northbound  0.44 =
Signalization 55 0.36 A Westbound  0.38 G 0.4

PM Background 2025

Four leg Stop Control 6h.7 = F southbound - F 101.3
Roundabout 0,66 - C Southbound 066 = =
Signalization 8.2 0.55 A Westbound (.40 B 18.0

PM Total 2025

Four leg Stop Control B1.9 2 F Southbound - F 122.9
Roundabout 0.69 . & Sputhbound  0.62 r 2
Signalization 8.4 0.57 A Westbound  '0.41 B 196

Signalization was coded as semi actuated, uncoordinated.

Analysis was again cond ucted using Synchro 6 software, the roundabout analysis was confirmed using
Sidra software. The Sidra analysis confirmed the ability of the proposed roundabout to accommodate the
future forecasted scenarios. More specifically, the overall intersection traffic operation was determined to
operate with the following V/C ratios and 1.0S during the background and total 2025 Weekday PM time
periods:

« Background 2025: LOS A, v/C - 0.54.
s Total 2025: LOS A, V/C -0.57.

2 2 Mill Street Transportation lmpact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

82




Traffic Operation Summary

All intersections analysed are expected to continue operating well within capacity into the future
development scenarios, with the exception of the Doyle Avenue & Water Street and Water Street & Bernard
Avenue intersections.

The Water Street & Bernard Avenue Intersection analysis suggested the southbound movement would
encounter a V/C ratio of 0.90 in the Total Weekday PM 2025 scenario. Optimization of the signal cycle
time and signal phasing provides for a reduction of the predicted V/C ratio for the southbound movement
at Water Street & Bernard Avenue by 12% to 0.78.

The Doyle Avenue & Water Street intersection’s west leg encounters significant delays as those vehicle wait
to turn onto Water Street. This condition is expected to be more prevalent during the peak summer
periods. Mitigation measures examined for the Doyle Avenue & Water Street intersection suggest
consideration of either a roundabout or the introduction of a traffic signal. This issue was found to be
present during the future background scenarios and is only slightly impacted by the proposed
development (during the peak hour period the proposed development is expected to add approximately
four westbound to southbound vehicle trips per hour).

The proposed introduction of a traffic circle at the Water Street & Queensway Avenue intersection (as
currently planned) will help relieve existing intersection delays at this intersection and maintain minimal
south leg queues on Water Street (Sidra forecasted 95" percentile existing peak hour northbound gueues
of approximately 17m}.

In summary, the development is shown to result in minimal traffic impact to the adjacent road network for
the different time periods and future horizon years considered by the analysis.

Mill Street Transportation impact Assessment Draft Report 2 3
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

83




TTRANSAORTA THON PLANKERS AND ENGINEERS

6.1

PARKING

The Mill Street Hotel site plan accommodates 242 on-site parking spaces, the majority of which are to be
located in an above grade parking structure with driveway access to Queensway as shown in Exhibit 4.7.

The reconfiguration of Queensway west of Water Street does eliminate existing street parking. The
proposed Mill Street hotel development has committed to securing 22 parking spaces within the new
parkade for public use to compensate for this loss of existing street parking.

Zoning Bylaw Parking Requirements

The City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw sets out the off-street parking supply requirements for a broad range of
land use types. Specifically for the C7 zone in the downtown area, the Bylaw parking supply requirements
for the proposed development are as listed in Table 6.1.

Table 6.1: Bylaw Requived Parking Summary

Mill Streat Development = City of Kelowna Bylaw Required Parking Summary

Land Use Rate GFA Req. Spaces MNotes

Restaurant 1.2 per 100m? 473 m? 6.2 C7 Zone Parking Requirement
Coffee Shop 1.3 per 100m* 207 m* 27 C7 Zone Parking Requirement
Conference 1.3 per 100m’ 1,684 m' 21.9 C7 Zone Parking Reguirement

Hotel | per room 214 rooms 214 e dJrect::I::r::e Gty o
Retall (fourunits) 1.3 per 100m* 3i7gm’ 4.9 C7 Zone Parking Requirement

Reguired 250 Round up as per bylaw
Provided 242
Difference -8 8 stall parking deficlency

Direct application of the Bylaw parking supply standards indicates that 250 off-street parking spaces are
required for the proposed development. The proposed on-site parking supply is 242 spaces which is eight
(8) parking spaces short of the Bylaw requirement.

24

Mill Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & associates | Project No, 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

84




bunt associates

Parking Demand Analysis

Recommended parking rates for the proposed development are provided below. These recommended
rates are based on Bunt & Associates' parking database information for urban development of the type
contemplated with the Mill Street redevelopment project.

6.2.1 Transportation Options

Parking demand for any development is significantly influenced by the transportation options available for
the residents, employees, visitors and customers. As discussed in Section 3 of this report, the proposed
Mill Street redevelopment project is very well situated in the downtown area of Kelowna with convenient
access to multiple transit routes as well as pedestrian and cycling conhections.

As discussed in Section 3.5 the site is well cannectad to transit, including connections with the airport
{(approximately 50 minute connection to downtown using BC Transit routes 23 and 97, these routes run
every 15 to 30 minutes 5:30 am to 6:50 pm), and is within walking distance of all major amenities within
Kelowna's downtown.

The hotel will also provide patrons with rental car services, which can help reduce private vehicle
dependence.

6.2.2 Hotel Parking Demand

The City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw parking supply requirement for hotel land use is one (1) stall per guest
room whether located downtown or in more suburban locations. In our opinion a more appropriate
parking rate for the hotel component of the project in this well accessed downtown location is 0.65 spaces
per guest room. For the proposed 214 hotels rooms, this translates to a peak parking demand of 139
vehicles which would typically occur during the early morning period as hotel staff arrive before the
overnight guests depart.

It is not uncommon for municipalities to differentiate between the downtown area and non downtown
areas for certain land use types including hotels, recognizing that guest staying in downtown hotels are
somewhat less dependent on automobile transportation for access to/from the facility and during their
stay. For instance, the City of Vancouver Parking Bylaw minimum parking supply requirement for
downtown hotels is 0.3 stalls per sleeping unit or 60% of the otherwise required 0.5 spaces per sleeping
uhit for hotels outside of downtown area.

In addition to the availability of taxi and shuttle bus connections to the Kelowna International Airport, it is
noted that BC Transit routes 23 and 97 provide public transit access between the airport and downtown at
15 to 30 minute service headways. Moreover, the proposed new hotel is planning to provide an on-site
car rental service for guests that would further reduce the need for private vehicle access and parking.

Mill Street Transportation impact Assessment Diraft Report 2 5
bunt & associates | Project No, 4652.08 { March 7, 2014

85




FRUANSPCRTTA RN PLANNERS ANDENCINEERS

62.3 Commercial Uses Parking Demand

On account of the downtown location of the commercial uses planned for the project including the
restaurant, coffee shop, the four small retail units along Water Street and the conference centre, the City
of Kelowna has confirmed that these uses will be assessed the 1.3 parking spaces per 100m? of floor area
C7 Zone Bylaw parking supply rate.

6.2.4 Shared Parking Opportunity

The different uses proposed for the development will have different peak parking demand patterns
through the day. In particular, the peak parking associated with the hotel is typically during the early
morning period as hotel staff arrives to the hotel before the guests begin to depart. During this hotel
peak parking period, the other commercial uses on the site will typically have minimal if any parking
activity.

According to the ITE Parking Generation Manual, hotel parking demand during the mid-day period is
typically down to about 60-70% of its early morning peak. With an estimated peak parking demand of 139
parked vehicles during the early morning period, the mid afternoon parking demand for the hotel
component would decrease to between 95-1 00 parked vehicles.

Table 6.2 on the following page provides a summary of the anticipated parking demands for the different
component uses during the morning, mid afternoon, and evening periods. This analysis indicates that the
combined peak parking demand for this proposed collection of uses is anticipated to be 167 vehicles
during the early morning period, 133 vehicles during the mid afternoon period, and 159 vehicles during
the evening period. Should the parking demand associated with the other commercial uses planned for
the project exceed the C7 Zone Bylaw parking supply rates, the parking demand figures would be
somewhat higher than these estimates but still well less than the 242 stall parking supply to be provided.

with 242 parking spaces proposed for the development, and assuming the other commercial uses on the
site generate parking demand consistent with the Bylaw supply rates, potentially between 75 to 109
surplus parking spaces will be available in the parkade at different times of the day. This surplus parking
would be available for use to offload parking pressures elsewhere in vicinity of the development.

2 6 Mill Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 201 4

86




bunt A550C|IaLESs

Table 6.2: Shared Parking Analysis

Estimated Parking Demand (Parked Velicles)

—— Individual
P GFA Peak Maorning Afternocon Evening
Use
Demand *
Restaurant 4723 m’ & 3 6 &
Coffee Shop 207 m* 3 3 3 3
Conference 1,684 m’ 22 22 22 22
Haotel 214 rooms 134 130 97 125
Retall - 4 units 78 m® 5 0 5 3
Totals 175 167 133 159
vehicles vehicles vehicles vehicles

* The individual peak parking demands for the component land uses are the C7 Bylaw parking required
e where the 139 vehicle figure is based on the recommended 0.65

Note:
parking except in the case for the hotel us

per guest room parking rate described in Section 6.2.2.

27

Mill Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014




[ ANCPERTATION PLANKERS AND ENGINEERS

7. LOADING

Loading vehicles will access the site from the rear lane, as shown in Exhibit 7.1.

The City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw as applied directly to the proposed development would require a total of
eight (8) loading bays {1 per 2,800 square metres of floor area). Based on our database information for
loading requirements for the collection of uses proposed here, we pelieve that 8 loading bays would be
excessive. In our opinion a total of two (2) loading bays would be sufficient and therefore the proposed
three (3) loading bay configuration will be more than adequate to service the development.

Using the AutoTURN software package, Bunt conducted a vehicle turning path analysis to confirm the
adequacy of the proposed lecading court design to accommodate SU9 design vehicles (single unit box
truck with an overall length of 30 feet). As shown in Exhibit 7.1 all three loading bays are capable of
accommodating the SU9 design vehicle.

2 8 Mill Street Transportation Impact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 ] March 7, 2014

88




bunt associates

Exhibit 7.1 Loading-AutoTURN Analysis

29

Mill Street Transportation lmpact Assessment Draft Report

bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

89




EHS AND ENGINEERS

8. TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT

The downtown context of the site is ideal for implementation of Transportation Demand Management
{TDM} measures as it is located in a highly pedestrian friendly environment, close to transit, other shops
and services, and eventuaily higher density residential development.

A key element of TDM programs for customers and employees of projects such as the proposed
development is that alternative travel options be relevant, practical to implement and well advertised. The
hotel can play an active role in informing their guests on which services are available locaily and the best
walking/ cycling routes to get there. This can easily be done in person, during the check in process or on
the hotel's web site.

Additional information that should be provided on the hotel's website includes Kelowna transit routes,

aspecially to the airport. Currently there is bus access to/from the airport via route 23 & route 97. This
one transfer trip takes approximately 50 minutes and connects the airport directly with the Queensway
exchange, which is adjacent to the site.

Given the hotel has a plan to offer a car rental directly onsite, this offers visitors flexibility to access a
vehicle just when it is required.

We also believe it is prudent for the hotel to not oversupply parking. An oversupply of parking can
encourage unnecessary vehicle use. In addition from a regional perspective a tighter downtown parking
supply can help encourage commuters to use other forms of transportation by making the other modes
such as transit more financially competitive.

To encourage cycling trips, particularly for employees of the hotel and other commercial uses planned for
the project, end of trip bicycle facilities including bike storage as per the requirements of the City of
Kelowna Zoning Bylaw, well as shower and change room facilities should be considered.

3 0 Mill Street Transpoftation Impact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & associates | Project No, 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

90




SUMMARY & CONCLUSIONS

Traffic Impact

The existing road network with the traffic study area presently operates within capacity during the
weekday morning and afternoon peak traffic periods.

The proposed Mill Street hotel and commercial development is expected to generated approximately 96,
141 and 175 total two-way trips per Weekday AM, Weekday PM, and Saturday peak hours, respectively.

Al intersections analysed with the traffic study area are expected to continue operating well within
capacity into the future development scenarios, with the exception of the Doyle Avenue & Water Street and
Water Street & Bernard Avenue intersections. Forecast growth in area traffic generally is anticipated to lead
to capacity issues at both locations.

The Water Street & Bernard Avenue intersection analysis indicates that the southbound through traffic
movement would encounter a volume to capacity (V/C) ratio of 0.90 for the Year 2025 Total Traffic
condition (background traffic growth plus site traffic associated with the proposed development).
Optimization of the signal time and phasing enabled the V/C of the southbound movement at Water Street
& Bernard Avenue to be reduced to 0.78.

The Doyle Avenue & Water Street intersection’s west leg encounters significant delays, particularly for
eastbound vehicles attermnpting to turn onto Water Street. This condition is expected to be most acute
during the peak summer periods. Mitigation measures examined for the Doyle Avenue & Water Street
intersection suggest consideration of either a traffic roundabout or the introduction of traffic signal
control. This issue was found to be present during the future background scenarios and is only slightly
impacted by the proposed development (during the peak hour period the proposed development is
expected to add approximately four westbound to southbound vehicle trips per hour).

The preposed introduction of a traffic circle at the Water Street & Queensway Avenue intersection (as
currently planned) will help relieve existing intersection delays at this intersection and maintain minimal
south leg queues on Water Street (Sidra forecasted 95™ percentile existing peak hour northbound queues
of approximately 17m).

In summary, the development is shown to res ult in little discernible impact to the adjacent road network
during the examined time periods.

Mii Street Transportation lmpact Assessiment Draft Report 3 ]
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 | March 7, 2014

91




TRANSPOMTATION PLANNERS ANLI EMCEMEERS:

9.2  Parking and Loading

Direct application of City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw minimum parking supply requirements yields a
minimum parking supply of 250 spaces which is 8 spaces more than the 242 parking spaces to be

provided.

The actual peak parking demand anticipated for the development, aliowing for the different time of day
peak parking demand characteristics of the component uses, ranges from approximately 135 parked
vehicles during the mid-day period up to approximately 170 parked vehicles in the early morning period
(mainly associated with the hotel use). This analysis would indicate that anywhere from approximately 75
to 110 surplus parking spaces would potentially be available in the parkade at different times of the day to
offload parking pressures elsewhere in the downtown. Westcorp has committed to making available a
minimum of 22 spaces in the new parkade for public use to accommodate existing street parking on
Queensway west of Water Street that will eliminated with the proposed reconfiguration of this road.

Direct application of the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw requirements for loading would result in a total of
eight (8) loading bays for the proposed development. Based on our database information for loading use
associated with this type of development, in our opinion a total of two loading bays would be sufficient.
The proposed three loading bays, accessed from the rear lane, will be more than adequate to service the
planned development.

9.3 Transportation Demand Management

The downtown context of the site is ideal for implementation of Transportation Demand Management
(TDM) measures as it is located in a highly pedestrian friendly environment, close to transit, other shops
and services, and eventually higher density residential development. Aside from providing on-site bicycle
storage as per the requirements of the Zoning Bylaw, and pianned provision of an on-site car rental service
for hotel guests to lessen the requirement for private vehicles or even rental cars checked out from the
airport, other TDM initiatives should be considered to encourage employee and guest/customer travel by
modes other than private automobile. We recommend the hotel provide guests with the following
information, to be available on site and on the hote!'s website:

o Local transit information (in particular connections between the hotel and Kelowna airpori);

s Nearby cycling routes;
o Lists of amenities within a walking distance; and,

o Available shuttle services such as winery tours.

3 2 Mill Street Transportation lmpact Assessment Draft Report
bunt & associates | Project No. 4652.08 i March 7, 2014

92




bunt associates

APPENDIX A

Traffic Volumes

93




94




Community Consultation To-Date Summary

Public Consultation Chronology:

Dec 20", 2012 — City of Kelowna staff and Stakeholder meeting - Initial hote! design concepts were
discussed. Invitees included: City of Kelowna planning staff, the owner of Kelly O’Bryan’s;
representatives from UBCO, the wine industry, technology sector, UBCO, DKA, and the Chamber of
Commerce. Design drivers were refined as a result of the feedback gathered.

2013 - Meetings with adjacent neighbour - numerous one-on-one meetings were held with the owner
of Kelly O’Bryan’s, Reg Henry. A letter of support from Mr. Henry accompanies the application.

Apr 17, 2013 — Meeting with DKA Board of Directors - Initial hotel concepts were presented and
discussed. Feedback was overwhelmingly positive, especially regarding the interface with Kerry Park.
There were questions about parking, and an expressed hope that the project not propose a large deficit
in this regard.

lan 7, 2014 — Meeting with the Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors — preliminary design drawings
were presented and discussed. Feedback was quite positive.

Feb 12, 2014 — meeting with DKA Board of Directors —a presentation was given to the Board, their
comments were recorded for use on a Hotel Story video, and information booklets were given to all
attendees.

Feb 13, 2014 — Press release and renderings were released to the media.

Feb 13, 2014 — Proposed Hotel Information Booklet, Renderings, Design Rationale and Variance
Rationale were posted on Westcorp’s website.

Feb 14, 2014 — Open House flyers were sent to 2400 households and businesses in the downtown area,
and were hand-delivered to the three block radius around the development site.

Feb 26 - March 12 —Open House Notices were posted in each of the Daily Courier and Capital News
publications for this time period. (Daily Courier 13 issues, Cap News 4 issues}

Mar 12, 2014 — Public Information Session/Open House was held at the Rotary Centre for the Arts from
3pm—7pm. Presentation materials included: Presentation boards, Hotel Story Video, Hotel Fly-
Through, 3-D Model, and 400 Information Booklets. Representatives were: Phil Miiroy, Gail Temple,
Kyle Spence, Mandy Little, and Keri Fields from Westcorp, Michael McDonald and Guy Taylor from
Kasian, and Kim Perry from Perry and Associates.

188 persons registered at the session, although estimated attendance was 300 —400

129 feedback sheets were received

112 were supportive of the project (87%)

95



1 was provisionally supportive (if the height was reduced to 19 storeys) (1%)
3 were undecided {2%)
13 were not supportive of the project (10%})

Comments from supporiive individuals included:

Fabulous. Just what Kelowna needs!

Sincerely hope this opportunity is approved and moves forward rapidly.

Westcorp has done a great job so far - very impressive!

Put a restaurant on the top floor.

1 think the project is fantastic. Well Done!

Look forward to seeing the project move forward.

We fully support reconfiguration of Mill 5t.

Great looking building; will really add value to downtown; exactly the type of project we need to
bring Kelowna into the future.

Fantastic development of the space! It injects exactly what Kelowna needs in its downtown
core.

Great transitions to water, park and adjacent/existing buildings.

Great project. Kelowna’s next step into urban maturity. Looks great!

Thank you for a very informative presentation.

| fully support the project. Good work!

Great addition for the downtown!

Hope it is not a condo hotel. Great. Loveit.

Fantastic. The sooner you huild, the better.

Nice change for downtown.

Add seme condo units.

Very exciting and needed project for downtown. Animates the waterfront. Supports downtown
businesses and gives visitors a first class place to stay. All great!

An attractive design with a lot of thought behind it.

This type of hotel offers something different from what currently exists.

Love it!

Excellent proposal. Let’s get it done now!

Good plan. Can’t happen soon enough.

will add very well to the skyline and downtown area. 1 am enthused. Bravo!

Huge improvement and definitely needed to update the waterfront area.

We had hoped there would be some condos. Thanks for the fine wharf.

Kelowna needs this.

A real asset to Kelowna.

Wonderful project. Landmark presence. Thanks.

Great design. Great concept.

Can't wait to see it come to life.

Looking forward to watching it develop and pull more people downtown.

Very excited to see density and great architecture added to Kelowna.

Will bring a lot of great benefits to the downtown core. I'm completely behind this project.
Well planned. Well designed. Can’t wait to have a drink on one of the patios!

96



A design of this calibre will only serve to strengthen Kelowna’s profile, burgeoning brand, and
position as a Canadian jewel.

Very supportive.

Will transfer what is currently an unexciting parking lot and confusing dangerous roadway into
an exciting space that will energize and great improve the appearance of the downtown
waterfront.

I think this is a great project that completes the bookend for the waterfront and the Yacht Club.

Comments from undecided individuals included:
Parking may be an issue?
Need separated bike lanes in parks. Toc dangerous for bikers, dogs, kids, wheelchairs, etc.
Best location, smart move, but this will affect businesses —accommodations.

Comments from unsupportive individuals included:

Some would say that not saying you are willing to serve all residents explicitly may be
discriminatory to those who couldn’t afford your views.

Too close to the water; foo high.

Would be better as a 6 — 8 storey boutique hotel; height is not appropriate.

Should not build high-rises on the waterfront; Mill 5t. is needed for traffic and parking.
Hotel is too tall; benefits are for hotel guests and not Kelowna residents.

Do not like height of tower; do not like loss of park and public access.

Don’t understand why someone with a heart wouldn’t instead want to building something to
actually help my neighbour rather than favor to line someone’s pockets.

Don’t think will be good for downtown especially considering impact on marginalized
population.

Not in favour of highrises in the downtown area at all.

Mar 14, 2014 —~ Hotel Story Video, Fly-Through, and the location of the 3-D Model for viewing were
posted on the Westcorp website.

Upcoming meetings/presentations:

Mar 25, 2014 — presentation to EDC Board
Apr 29, 2014 — presentation to Rotary Club at Coast Capri

Jun 4, 2014 ~ presentation to Ogopogo Rotary Club

Neighbourhood Association.

97

|
E
We have requested meetings with The Heritage Society and the Kelowna Downtown Knox Mountain F
\
\



CITY OF KELOWNA
MEMORANDUM
Date: April 28, 2014
File No.: DP14-0024
To: Urban Planning (JM)
From: Development Engineer Manager {(SM)
Subject: 235 Queensway Ave, 1470 & 1476 Water Street

The Development Engineering comments and requirements regarding this Development Permit
application are as follows:

1. General.

a) All the offsite infrastructure and services upgrades are addressed in the Development
Engineering Rezoning Report under file Z14-00086.

Steve Muenz, P. Eng.
Development Engineering Manager

SS

98



CITY OF KELOWNA
MEMORANDUM

Date:
File No.:

To:
From:

Subject:

April 28, 2014
Z14-0006

Urban Planning (JM)
Development Engineering Manager (SM)
235 Queensway Ave, 1470 & 1476 Water Street Hotel Development

Development Engineering Department have the following comments and requirements
associated with this application. The road and utility upgrading requirements outlined in this
report wilt be a requirement of this development.

The Development Engineering Technologist for this project is Sergio Sartori

General

a) Provide easements as may be required.

b) The proposed hotel development triggered a traffic impact assessment (TIA).
The recommendations and key findings indicate no additional offsite works are
triggered by the development. The TIA does require minor revisions for City
Transportation & Mobility approval and must be submitted prior ta issuance of the
Development Permit.

1. Domestic Water and Fire Protection

(a) The existing lot (1470} is serviced with small diameter (60mm) water service. The
developer’s consulting mechanical engineer will determine the domestic and fire
protection requirements of this proposed development and establish hydrant
requirements and service needs.

() The applicant, at his cost, will arrange for the removal of the existing main within
the closed road and the instaliation of new water main and service.

(c) The developer must obtain the necessary permits and have all existing utility

(@)

services disconnected prior to removing or demolishing the existing structures.
The City of Kelowna water meter contractor must salvage existing water meters,
prior to building demolition. If water meters are not salvaged, the developer will
be invoiced for the meters.

Sanitary Sewer

The developer's consulting mechanical engineer will determine the requirements
of this proposed development and establish the required size and preferred
location of the new service. Only one service will be permitted for this
development. The applicant, at his cost, will arrange for the removal of all
existing small diameter services (3} and the installation of a new larger service.

99




Z14-0006 235 Queensway Ave, 1470 & 1476 Water Street 2-

5.

(b)

(c)

The applicant, at his cost, will arrange for the removal of the existing main within
the closed road and the installation of new sanitary main and service as required.

A downstream flow analysis check is required by a consulting civil engineer to
determine the impact of additional flow contributions on the existing pipe system
and sewer lift station. If it is determined that upgrades to the existing facilities
must be made, additional bonding will be required.

Storm Drainage

(@)

(b)

The developer must engage a consuiting civil engineer to provide a storm water
management plan for the site which meets the requirements of the City Storm
Water Management Policy and Design Manual. The storm water management
plan must also include provision of lot grading plans, minimum basement
elevations (MBE), if applicable, and provision of a storm drainage service and
recommendations for onsite drainage containment and disposal systems.

Only one service will be permitted for this development. The applicant, at his
cost, will arrange for the removal of the existing main within the closed road, and
the installation of new storm main as required as well as one new overflow
service.

Road Improvements

(@)

(b)

(c)

Queensway Avenue as a result of the road closure will require complete
reconstruction including a Cul De Sac. Construction will include curb and gutter,
sidewalk, storm drainage system including catch basins and manholes,
pavement, boulevard landscaping firrigation, street lights as required, and
relocation or adjustment of existing utility appurtenances if required to
accommeodate the upgrading construction.

Water Street fronting this development site is urbanized. The proposal to
construct a roundabout will require realigning the curb, gutter and sidewalk to
accommodate this intersection improvement. This will require the curb, sidewalk
removal and reconstruction including the re-location or adjustment of existing
utility appurtenances to accommodate the upgrading construction. Additional
improvements along the remainder of Water Street fronting this development
may be required.

The lane fronting this development is urbanized to a paved standard. The extent
of pavement restoration beyond the service trench upgrades may be required.
The full width pavement of the lane should be repaved complete with a
turnaround at the west end.

Mill Street as a resulf of the road closure will require reconstruction including the
re-location or adjustment of existing utility appurtenances to accommodate the
upgrading construction. The intersection of Mill Street and Bernard Avenue will
be a part of the improvements.

Subdivision

By registered plan to provide the following:
(a) Lot consolidation.

(b) Grant statutory rights-of-way if required for utility services.

100




Z14-0006 235 Queensway Ave, 1470 & 1476 Waler Street 3-

6.

10.

Electric Power and Telecommunication Services

The elecltrical services to this development must be installed in an underground
duct system, and the building must be connected by an underground service. [t
is the developer's responsibility to make a servicing application with the
respective electric power, telephone and cable transmission companies to
arrange for theses services which would be at the applicant's cost.

Street Lighting

Street lighting including underground ducts must be installed on all roads fronting
on the proposed development. The cost of this requirement is included in the
roads upgrading item.

Engineering

Road and utility construction design, construction supervision, and quality control
supervision of all off-site and site services including on-site ground recharge
drainage collection and disposal systems, must be performed by an approved
consulting civil engineer. Designs must be submitted to the city engineering
department for review and marked “issued for consiruction” by the city engineer
before construction may begin.

Design and Construction

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Design, construction supervision and inspection of all off-site civil works and site
servicing must be performed by a Consulting Civil Engineer and all such work is
subject to the approval of the City Engineer. Drawings must conform to City
standards and requirements.

Engineering drawing submissions are to be in accordance with the City’s
“Engineering Drawing Submission Requirements” Policy. Please note the
number of sets and drawings required for submissions.

Quality Control and Assurance Plans must be provided in accordance with the
Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw No. 7900 (refer to Part 5 and
Schedule 3).

A “Consulting Engineering Confirmation Letter” (City document ‘C'} must be
completed prior to submission of any designs.

Befare any construction related to the requirements of this subdivision applicaticn
commences, design drawings prepared by a professional engineer must be
submitted to the City's Works & Utilities Department. The design drawings must
first be “Issued for Construction” by the City Engineer. On examination of design
drawings, clit may be determined that rights-of-way are required for current or
future needs.

Servicing Agreements for Works and Services

(a)

A Servicing Agreement is required for all works and services on City lands in
accordance with the Subdivision, Development & Servicing Bylaw No. 7800. The
applicant’s Engineer, prior to preparation of Servicing Agreements, must provide
adequate drawings and estimates for the required works. The Servicing
Agreement must be in the form as described in Schedule 2 of the bylaw.

101




Z14-0006 235 Queensway Ave, 1470 & 1476 Water Street 4-

(b) Part 3, “Security for Works and Services”, of the Bylaw, describes the Bonding
and Insurance requirements of the Owner, The liability limit is not to be less than
$5,000,000 and the City is to be named on the insurance policy as an additional
insured.

11. Geotechnical Report

As a requirement of this application the owner must provide a geotechnical report
prepared by a Professional Engineer qualified in the field of hydro-geotechnical
survey to address the foliowing:

(a) Area ground water characteristics.

(b) Site suitability for development, unstable soils, etc,

{c) Drill and / or excavate test holes on the site and install pisometers if
necessary. Log test hole data to identify soil characteristics, identify areas of
filt if any. Identify unacceptable fill material, analyse soil sulphate content,
ldentify unsuitable underlying soils such as peat, etc. and make
recommendations for remediation if necessary.

(d) List extraordinary requirements that may be required to accommodate
gonjstruction of roads and underground utilities as well as building foundation
esigns.

(e) Affditional geotechnical survey may be necessary for building foundations,
etc.

12. Charges and Fees

a) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are payable

b) Fees per the “Development Application Fees Bylaw” include:

i) Street/Traffic Sign Fees: at cost if required (o be determined after
design).

if) Survey Monument, Replacement Fee: $1,200.00 (GST exempt) — only if
disturbed.

iii) Engineering and Inspection Fee: 3% of construction value (plus GST).

Steve Muenz, P. Eng.
Developinent Engineering Manager

35S

102




“

CITY OF KELOWNA
MEMORANDUM
Date: April 28, 2014
File No.: OCP14-0005
To: Urban Planning {JM)
From: Development Engineer Manager (SM)

Subject: 235 Queensway Ave, 1470 & 1476 Water Street

The Development Engineering comments and requirements regarding this OCP amendment
application are as follows:
1i. General.

a) All the offsite infrastructure and services upgrades are addressed in the Development
Engineering Report under file Z14-0006.

L

Steve Muenz, R/EHg.
Development Engineeting Manager

55

103




Interior Health

March 17,2014

James Moore

Land Use Management Department
1435 Water Street

Kelowna, BC V1Y 1J4

Dear James,

RE: Rezoning Z14-0006/0CP14-0005/DP14-0024 & DVP14-0025
235 Queensway Ave, 1470 & 1476 Water Street

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to this development application from a population
health perspective.

This 24 storey, 214 room hotel proposal will offer many benefits to the City and community
members.

From a population health perspective the creation and continuation of a pedestrian friendly
environment with proximity to parks and pathways;

o enhance the ability of people to engage in physical activity,

e create a greater sense of community,

e increase the sense of safety in this area

All of these represent components of a healthy community and improved health outcomes.
Interior Health is in support of this application.

Please contact me if you have any questions or comments.
Sincerely

B
P, | 7«:»{»

Pam Moore CPHI (C)
Healthy Built Environment Team

Bus: (250) 980-5077 HEALTH PROTECTION
Fax: (250) 980-5060 ‘Less Risk, Better Health”
Web: interiorhealth.ca 2" Floor, 1835 Gordon Drive Kelowna, BC V1Y 3H5

104




Fire Prevention Branch
2255 ENTERPRISE WAY
KELOWNA, B.C.

V1Y $BS

FIRE DEPARTMENT COMMENTS

DATE: February 21,2014

TO:

FROM:

James Moore
Gayanne Pacholzuk, Fire Prevention Officer

RE: DP14 0024 235 Queensway

Commenis regarding the projeet:

Construction fire safety plan is required to be submitted and reviewed prior to construction
and updated as required.

Engineered Fire Flow calculations are required to determine Fire Hydrant requirements as
per the City of Kelowna Subdivsion Bylaw #7900,

Avisible address must be posted as per City of Kelowna By-Laws

Sprinkler drawings are to be submitted to the Fire Dept. for review when available.

Afire safety plan as per section 2.8 BCFC is required at occupancy. The fire safety plan and
floor plans are to be submitted for approval in AutoCAD Drawing format on a CD or DVD to
facilitate Fire Department pre-planning for this structure. The fire safety plan should clearly
detail the unique requirements for this structure, A copy of the sprinkler system owner’s certificate
is top be included in the fire safety plan.

Fire Department access is to be met asper BCBC 3.2.5.6

Fire Stairwells to be marked clearly (including roof access) as per Fire Department
requirements. This would be standardized and approved by the Kelowna Fire Department
(KFD). _

Fire Department steel lock box (large size) or key tube acceptable to the fire dept. is required
by the fire dept. entrance. Kurt’s Lock & Safe at 100A - 1021 Ellis Street, Kelowna is the
approved supplier for flush mount lock boxes.

The standpipes connections are to be installed on the transitional landings of the stairwells
as per NFPA 14. 3) Fire Stairwells to be marked clearly (including roof access) as per Fire
Department requirements. This would be standardized and approved by the Kelowna Fire
Department (KFD).

All requirements of the City of Kelowna Fire and Life Safety Bylaw 10760 shall be met
including part 5, 7 and 14 (Additional requirements for High Buildings)

Fire alarm system is to be monitored by an agency meeting the CAN/ULC $562 Standard.

Contact Fire Prevention Branch for fire extinguisher requirements and placement.
Fire department connection is to be within 45M of a fire hydrant — please ensure this is possible

and that the FD connection is clearly marked and visible from the stroet. 1 O 5




106

LEGAL ADDRESS:

235 QUEENSWAY AVE — 3 parcels
LOT ADL139 PLAN 2180

LOTS 6 AND 7 ODYD PLAN 505

1470 - 1476 WATER 5T,
LOTS 1 AND 2 DL139 ODYD PLAN 2658

CIIC ADDRESS!

Development, Rezoning and OCP Amendment
Application covering the fellowing Properties.

235 QUEENSWAY AVE., 1470 WATER ST. AND
1476 WATER ST., KELOWNA, BC

DRAWING LIST

) COVER PAGE

241 LEGA, EURVEY

[* GERITEXT PLAN & ZONING ANALYSIS TABLE
a3 DEVELGPUENT STATISTICS

fod CONTEXT FHOTES

a5 LEVEL 1 1 FLOOR PLAN

408 LEvEl

27 LEVE.

A LEVEL

et e

aen LEV!

A1 LEvE

&2 LEVE

212 LEVEL 5 RLCCR Pl - GREEN ROOF

Adte FLOGR TYPE HE

Ae$ FLOORTYPEHSE

acd FLOSIR TYRE RS

At FLOGR TYPE RE-8

b FLOCR TYFE 69

2o FLOGR TYPEFS

230 AROOF PLAN

Azt BUILOING ELEVATICH ~NORTH

Az EAILDHNG ELFVATION - S2UTH

A BUNING ELEVATIGN - EXET

a2 SUILOING ELEVATICN - WEST

25 BUILTNG SECTICH A_WESTEAST

Aag EnURDING SECTICH 6_'MEST-E45T

a2 BUILOING SECTION C_WEST-EAST

At BLILOMNG SECTIGN T NORTH-SaUTH

5 MATERIAL BOWAD

w2 VIEW OF GITSCAPE FRCM OKANAGAR LAKE
a3 AERIAL Y1 FAGH KERRY PARK 1 FOOT GF BERNARD AVE
AR iEw PR

w2 IEWFR

- VEW R

AR VIR TEMART THE HOTEL LOBEY

#28 VIEW FROM STUART PARK

A ViEW FROM CUEENSWWAY & WATER ET,

At VIEW PROW CILEEREIWAY

w2a BGHTTIME AT FROH THE MARIR

p T - PROPSED SETRACK WARIANCES ABOVE 1541
At 57 - FROPSED SETBACK YARLAKEES ABCHE 22
w2 7 - PRCROSED YARIANCES - BULDING HEIGHT
A= SHADON AHALYEIS

B LiDSIAPE GOATEXT FLAH

via

LA

12

13

Lz

vz LANTING LM LEVELS

138 WATER CENSERUATION SN0 IRRIGATIGH - ALLUEVELS
140 | AHDSCASE FRECEDENT PINGES

Westcorp & RE-ISSUED FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT COVER PAGE A90 V%

Kelowna Downtown Hetel 2014/08/06

Kelowna, BC PROJECT 160013 _Amm—m :




PLAN SHOWING PROPOSED ROAD y R 1
CLOSURE OF PARTS OF MILL STREET / o e PLAN 83363
AND QUEENSWAY AVENUE S/ e e L
| CITY OF KELOWNA / .
/ T N QUEENSWAY  AVENUE
H i s / e e e
~ P Ty
| OKANAGAN  LAKE < . o o .%\ ﬂum%m P xw
_ \ T @ PROPOSED CLOSED ROAD =\ !
S i 0:208 ha. ® 7
Vi / ... . ,
4 i / / f Teasss T _
Ve . PLAN 2207 / / i | | |
\.\ R \\ . / i ; i ,
\\ ,// \. % \owr %.m \ W _ |
1 . / m
. 2 & -
;8 / T = ==
g //, \ y i | PLAN 2689 =
~ / PLAN | 505 2180 _ 9 i
: s ~t ! [
7 .\ & _ i 0
g 3 Tzt 73278 | g
‘ \ Y \M . S I R
. 1 e/ eROPOSED ;e &
. | RGHTOFWAY =TT T g e — I . o
N ; | AND EASEMENT 1 | g | i i _ = :
PLAN 40519 “ L N o T B | || 2 !
. ; E o S | | '30 FEET ]
\ , | & PROPGSED P @ Pl | i ,m ! _
| 3 | w COVERANT o | . _ i |
[ .._,m.ﬂam o i i H ] : j
_ e I A B * _ . f
. | PLAN i EPLAN || | PLAN 2247 | | m
) | 5 ,. m PLAN 38133
2207 , i =05 _ i _ﬂr.PZ,. 505 7 !
™, 7 ; P ! | m 16204 W
f i
“-E . i i [ _ i | ]
SCALE 1:500 S S S N T Nt M LW. N DA Goddard Lond Surveying Hhe. f _
._ie!m‘lwli._e]nom.elna‘mﬁli S — BERNARD  AVENUE _ -H«.Hﬁma w_.\ uwﬁmawmm._‘ zm.gﬂ.w.ugm aw,mdml o !_ m
£ 1y LEGAL SURVEY

Westcomp

LEGAL SURVEY
Kelowna Dewntown Hotel
Kelowna, BC

NI st 1.2

A1 vk
2014/08/08 v

PROJECT 160013 xmm—m: ;



108

@

KORTH

| - LEGAL ADDRESS:

235 QUEENSWAY AVE -3 parcels
SPSCH COIVEANT . LOT ADL138 PLAN 2180
=l LOTS 6 AND 7 ODYD PLAN 505

r 4470 — 1476 WATER ST.
LOTS 1 AND 2 DL139 ODYD FLAN 2698

— EESS

STUARTPARK
f

CIVIC ADDRESS:

Development, Rezaning and ocP Amendment
Application covering the following Properties:

235 QUEENSWAY AVE., 1470 WATER ST. AND
1476 WATER ST., KELOWNA, BC

—im & & - 1 I R
; e k3 Sy Ve
7 E -, T e 7T - T 3 i .
oy = : 0 A ZOHING ANALYSIS TABLE
~ ; . M , ot
i = feive g e iR 1 faowmn Deamtown, Hotel o Revised DE Appriomkic

Kelgwmm _Sma i nay wud

L 11

T mopATY INE , s r_szu
i u_..zlm_

_ o
Lo Repn (Fy
i —r— o Gt o =

Sie Canrorogs D ey, LY

- Fand i
- I Ty / HASRINA ‘N

EERHARD AVEIVE

Kasian

_ﬂ. oozx._.szmNoz_zo»z.p_.é_m;w_.m >.S
<<mmw8~._u w O mlm _r.@ C nlm : y Kelowna Downiown _._%_f Bi__omam
This forms part of development Kelowna, BC PROJECT 150013

Permit # rV!ﬁ | 4 - 002% /Dt 14~0B




109

Westcorp




- » |
\iew lpoking towards sits from 381 Stand Bernard Ave

Aesial view of site in relafion to Marina

Viewlooking dowh Cuecnoway towards Marina

110

Context Photos
Kelowna Downtown Hetel
Kelowna, BC

AG4
2014108108
PROJECT 160013

%

Kasian



D) \
7/1]

i

. .
& [R43505 BEQDETIC

ELEVATEIN)

1
f
il TN LI e

b L

Senden Coritor

[

w50

-
=

5]
3
g

ASPHLANE

LEVEL 1P PARKRG: 32 STALLS
TOTAL PARKNG FROVIED: 34 STALLS

PROPOSED COVENAHT | # 7

\m-:.. HERRYPARK EOLONG FIRE ESORE !  oniod
; BTAIRURY ABCHE
-‘ H
i PROPOSED RIGHT OF . i
. f i L=
Ny =] ]
Cercatt Lan. e
|
£ LEVEL 1 /P1 FLOOR PLAN
4 TR

— e ] LEVEL 1/P1 FLOOR PLAN ADS w -
s\mmﬁﬁoqu i = |Vﬁ Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014/08/08 a°
— B . ) | Kelowna, BC erosecT 1e003|  IKASEAN
Fhie forms p H._..h o1 deve :)3@:,#

i
DPM - 0024 [DUPM - 025"




Westcorp.

112

PAOPERTY LEJE.

L P-4 FLOOR PLAN
LE 120

LEVEL P-1 FLOOR PLAN AG W_ﬂ_‘”_,ﬁ
Kelowna Dowriown Hotel 2014/08/08 -"°
Kelowna, BC erosect ieoos]  IK@SIAN



Westcorp_

113

/™ LEVEL1/P2FLOOR PLAN
O/ pemE 1.0

-

LEVEL 1/P2FLOOR PLAN ALDT ‘._5..4
Kelowna Downiown Hotel 2014/08/06 a8
Kelowna, BC PROJECT 160013 zm m—m :




|
|

LEVEL 2/P3 FLOOR PLAN

<<Owﬁ8-._0 Kelowna Downfown Hotel
|.l|l|:,§1 Kelowna, BC

114

h'rm,._m_.w%m_"roo:m_.»z
B/ seaE

A-D8
2014/08/08
PROJECT 160013

m.._w...,
Kasian -




115

PRIH-coaH/ pPIH~ 0035

h'_.m<mS..2_"50mv_.>z
P seme 1w

LEVEL 2/ P4 FLOOR PLAN Ad9 P
/zmmﬁhoq._u Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014/08/06 q°
—— = Kelowna, BC erovect icooia|  IK@ASIAN



116

2 DR 14 6034/ Dnf H-06035

/T LEVEL 3/PSFLOOR PLAN
T IETCEET

. : LEVEL 3/ P5 FLOOR PLAN AD
<<®m»n0—._u Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014108106 W.q v
|||;|l. Kelowna, BC prosecT coots| K@ sian



117

|
3
o P1t-002M/ INPI4-00D 5
it B AN LEVEL 4 FLOCR PLAN
NPT

LEVEL 4 FLOOR PLAN A1 i
é@@ﬁﬁo—.—u Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014/08/08 ar

l,,ll.,l! Kelowna, BC erovect eoors, IK@SIAN




Westcorp_

1% ~coa{Difirt- 0025

LEVEL 4 MEZZANINE FLOOR PLAN
Kelowna Downtown Hotel
Kelowna, BC

A2
2014/08/08
PROJECT 160013

118

/T LEVEL 4 MEZZANINE FLOCR PLAN

7
Kasian



119

™ | 1014 -000t [P - 0035

T\ LEVEL 5 FLOOR PLAN - GREEN ROOF
BCHLE; 73200

A3 i
No:amam ___.,

PROJECT 160013 :mm—m: :

LEVEL 5 FLOOR PLAN - GREEN ROCF
Kelowna Downtown Hotel

Westcorp
.|i|||11| Ketowna, BC




PROPERTY LBIE

A

o~ 003t \U,_mzlgbm

FLOOR TYPE HS-A
Kelowna Downtown Hotel
Kelowna, BC

120

HDATH

TYPloaL ROaME
£ FLOOR TYPE 1-A
) selE 1w

A-14 "
2014/08/06

PROJECT 180013 —Amm— m : i}



Westcorp

1~ 06aH/ DR -0035

FLOCR TYPE HS-B
Kelowna Downtown Hotel
Kelowna, BC

121

TYPICAL ROCMS
/1, FLOOR TYFE 1.B
KB/ aeall 1

A5 :
2014108106 4"
prosect o003 IKASIAN




Westcorp!

PRCPERTY LNE

A

pPm-0054/DIP 1 ~00Q.5

ELOCR TYPE RS-A
Kelowna Downtown Hotel
Kelowna, BC

122

NORTH

TYPICAL 8UITES
7T _FLOOR TYPE 2C
) soae v

A6 vl
Mo:amam ..m,
_umo._mojmogw —ﬂmm_m—d




123

HERTH

PROFERTY LINE

g

De-00s4 [peP11-0025

FROPERTY UILE

TYPICAL SUTES
/T, FLOOR TYPE 2D
AR

FLOOR TYPERS-B A7 “mv b
Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014/08/08 .H‘ v

Kelowna, BC PROJECT 160013 -Am m -m -_.—



124

by Lue

PROFEATY LINE.

B

| M?;'moviv%i.%wm

| FROPEKTYLME

o | . _ [IGHATURE SUITE
£y FLOORTYPE 35
G e
mmﬁnQ._u FLOOR TYPE 88 A-1B .m.:
Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014/08/08 il
é - Kelowna, BC PROJECT 150013 zmm—m:




Westcorp

PROPERTY FiE

FROPERTYLINE

D1l 002/ DNPIH-002S
FLLOOR TYPE PS

Kelowna Downtewn Hotel
Kelowna, BC

125

NGRTE

PENTHOUSE SLITES
£ 1™ FLOOR TYPE 4.8
NPT

¢
Kaslan

A-19
2014/08/06
PROJECT 160013




126

T,

........
- s

WATER STREET

AGPH LANE
- m—— I
: 7 7™\ _ROUF PLAN
| i R \ ) s v
Wi e ROGF PLAN A-20 >
mm&ho_‘_u /4 Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014/08/06

Kaslian

Kelowna, BC PROJECT 180013



® © © O] ®

)
o

Il\{llllll!.\\t!um_‘ —TOREOF
1- Cement Composiie Paneling Syster - Colour ihite I
E 2- Castin Place Goncrete - Clear Sealsd
— S T o LeELS
3-Insulated Double Glazing Clear Float Glass e
[ 4-insulated Doutle Glazing~(Sunguard Supemeutral 54 or sim) e f— L SRR
5-Opaque Privacy Screen - Colour Amberfellow o m e m e i e e = e S ] e e e = i e e — TN LLBVELM
. - Laminated fif canopy baams - Colour Light Brown A ST . LEYEA,
[T 7-Metalic! Gray Composite Paneling System L B ] E PR —
. §-Composite Paneling System - Celour Light Brown | —._.ﬁ. 4 — . —fuD_Bmn
= s~ -
ﬂ 0 - Sandstone Veneer - (Cultured Stone or sim.) - Colour Belge . i
1= ! e e s = S BELIZ
10 - Aluminium Window Clear Anodizad g i
—  ——————— e — e bl SIS RAN
11 - Prefinished Metal Flashing - Colour Light Grey v i ,
. = | e e e . — S L PEVELE
12- Painted steel - Calour Dark Crey A ”
—— e ————— e —— e o ——— o ——— o BN LEVELIL
13 - Palmted Steed - Colour Light Brown B - - b E_”_ nE ,
14 - Painted hotlow metal door - Painted Grey e = i e e o e . ——— e — - —— - oA
1 |
15 - Overhead metzl door -~ Painted Grey e ——————— —— e — i e e = e — om0 LA
e e — o G — i —— - — i \L.EWIIII.III]\EIIIILHG\_.E
N — :|||.W||sa‘\lii|‘_|.||l|:lr.L§|E
) | :
. S i
! iy
—— e T —— e — | - U ———
[ W] T mnn.l_._ﬂmu“ |
B . | -.-I- ML e _mw_mmD
— TS DVEML,

R e .._

n e i
]

L.....___. | . mEn

—,

o)

. RUMTE LEVELAACH RODF

PP Y- N i}
<148 LERLFT FLODR FLAK

127

£ _BUILBING ELEVATION - NORTH

\3B ) seas 1w
(§

Kasiah

BUILDING ELEVATION - NORTH
Kelowna Downtown Hotel
Kelowna, BC

A
2014/08/06
PROJECT 160013




128

1 - Cement Composite Paneling System - Colour While

711 2-castin Place Gonorete - Clear Sealed

3- Inaulatsd Double Glazing Clear Float Glass

ﬁ 4 - Insulated Double Glazing - (Sunguard Supemeutral 34 or sim.)
5 -Qpaque Privacy Screen - Colour AmberYeflow

i B - Laminated fir canopy beams - CaloUr Light Brown

—

7 - Metallic Gray Compesite Paneling System

. & - Composite Paneling System - Colour Light Brown

“ - Sandstone Veneer - (Cullured Stene: or sim.) - Colour Belge

10 - Aluminiurm Window Clear Anodized

11 - Prefirished Metal Fiashing - Colour Light Grey

12 - Painted stee| - Colour Dark Grey
13 - Painted Steel - Colour Light Brown

14 - Pairtad holiow metal deor - Painted Grey

15 - Qyechead metal doar - Peinted Grey

.......................... Fiis = 2 o e e o oo e o155 LEVELAELGOR PLIN
=T jaa

.mluul.l = o) 1= 2 PR s RS

—— —— T - _— R e IIIJ‘E]IEEMFOUSBZ
Oo— ... . St H

N i

@ ............ L 'm...il I_Ill._lul s s — i

N . Lo SESE T S

(T

“ i £\ BUILDING ELEVATION - SOUTH
0 @ T T

- BUILDING ELEVATION - SOUTH A2 >
<<mm&8».~u s - M = - = Kelowna Downtavin Hotel 2014/08/06 %—v
N, Kelowna, BC PROJECT 160213 —ANW—N-.—

DOM- mobhmv ¥1y- 035



1 - Cement Composite Panaling System - Colour White
T 2- Castin Placs Conrate - Clear Sesled
3+ Insulated Doutle Glazing Clear Float Glass
m 4 -insutated Double Glazing - (Sunguard Supemeutral 54 ar sfm.)
5 - Opague Privacy Screen - Colour AmberfYelow
. 6 - Laminated fir canopy beams - Colour Light Brown
_._.|_1 T - Metaliice/ Gray Gomposite Paneling System
I &-Composite Pancling System - Colour Light Brown
H.-lm. 9 - Sandstone Venesr - (Cubured Stone or sim,) - Colour Beige
10 - Aluminium Window Clear Anodized
11 - Prefinished Metal Flaghing ~ Colour Light Grey
12 - Painted steel - Colour Dark Grey
13 - Palntad Steel ~ Colour Light Brown
14 - Fainted hollew metal door - Painted Grey

15 - Overhead metal door - Painted Grey

Westcorp

129

- T

PSR S U ——— K

o mE VR

U || S | LY 1

e i s nmn— e man = AT LEVELE

- =i ) =] ﬂu,ﬂ_ == e

Ty ......_.'....._.._._.urllinl...l_ll-r. == Tmis ' “ B I P— "
]

R AR

1 BUILDING ELEVATION -EAST

i
— : m— @ SCALE 11200
I .
. I@; —_— BUILDING ELEVATION - EAST A2 V%.
Kelowna Downtown Hotel 20114/08/06
el Kelowna, BC PROJECT 160013 —Amm—m—d

. & 0 _f oou,: v%i\omvm

| I



1 - Cement Composite Paneling System - Colour vihite

m 2- Castin Place Concrete - Clear Seeled
3-Insulated Double Glazing Clear Float Glass

ﬁ 4 -Insulated Doule Glazing - (Sunguard Supemeutral §4 ef sim.}
5 - Opaque Privacy Soreen - Colour AmberiYellow

T &~ Laninated fc canopy beams - Celour Light Browm

ﬂ. 7 -Metallle! Gray Campostte Paneling System

- B - Cormposite Paneling Systemn - Colour Light Brown

Mn..._..._” % - Bantstone Venzer - (Cultured Stons or gim.) - Colour Seige

10~ Alurninium Window Clear Anodized

11 - Prefinished Matal Flsshing - Colour Light Grey
12 - Painted stzet - Colour Dark Grey

13 - Palntsd Stee! - Colour Light Brown

14« Painted hollew metal door - Painted Grey

15 - Cverhead metal door - Painted Grey

Westcorp

::::::::: (i EE ..5%5

E [ T AR W
Lf cuathl: ll-ﬂg_ P "

T R

- . part of developme
LmH.mi.n\Obm&th.

e ——— v — —

BUILDING ELEVATION - WEST A24
Kelowna Downtown Hotal 2014/08/06
Kelowna, BC PROJECT 180013

130

(5

Kasian



131

11
§ §
ol

|

|

|

|

l

:

H
|
_ v
T
' Paor fatsa
_ ) JT. _ e ———— o o BT NEMEL IR
[ T
1 Fooe Tau RE4
L 1 H ET. ﬁ e o BTG AEVELIT,
| s |
i s e oo BEELENELIR,
. T -
_ ggggg A l i
_ . Ll = R ——— J - ET5 LEELIS,
T , T - :
| [ Hea i
| i ; S — R TR
I !
fi He
5 i ] (1) F—— U S S Y
v

] L] HES 7
ﬂ I 51~ 1 T, ARAL

F Ploor Tipa HE& L i

- BV
_ [ [
1 1 Hea I ”J

d - ] R e e = i o | TR

T

1

o
i
\_ _
_ 1 3
3
o . _ ; e e o B ASKELANPSPLSOR PN

|~ [ \.,illa%",sluH...HHu [ —— i S LT L . e
_ - T
b - _ - i o

[
ettt
ey
_. ] Ll . e < 1 PR
: i i j ! ! i
I S
3 s e S e S e
- = = = : ; i
1 I = —— .: Faides T : . T.‘H—l | ESENE i i R 100 _LEVEL 21P3 PLOOR PLISE
1 T T ; E : Vs Y
LN 1 0 P — ,.,E [ S [ 1 SRR | Mp———— foin _ Lol — _ - L e amiaeronars
4t H Bl
. . s = — = o LB e B
5954 GECOH
. Gmaned
etz LB 21 FLOOR PLUA

£\ BUILDING SECTION A WEST-FAE!
®

(B s
vic
Kasian

.m ’ BUILDNG SECTION A_WEST-EAST

E ) Kelowna Downtown Hotel
MVD M- OODL .\.gﬁ Y- O& Kelowna, BC

A25
2014/08/06
PROJECT 160013




Westcorp

o s WS, LEVEL2D,

O .- L

e | s ST, MEVEAL

AN, JENER AN

01y - Su,m.

___________
mmmmmmm

A-25
2014/08/06
PROJECT 160013

BUILDING SECTION B_WEST-EAST
Kelowna Downtown Hotel
Keiowna, BC

DRIY- 0034/ DVOIH ¢

132

2, BUILDING SECTION B WEST-EAST
NEFACTCRES
Sk
I\




Westcorp.

DY - ot/ DP14- 0035

BUILDING SECTION C_WEST-EAST
Kelowna Downtown Hotel
Kelowna, BC

A-27
2014/08/08
PROJECT 180013

133

/2, BUILDING SECTION C_WEST-EAS

NG ETEEE
Sk
kY
:

Kasian =




gl 205 APELAN

— IWTh LEVELAELOOR PLAK

SECTION E_WEST-EAST THROUGH LEVEL 4

/£ B PODIUM RODF
INEV TR

Westcorp

- z.oowm,x e - 0025

134

S R ——— L+

- lm - AR LEELRR

A o el FEVERAL

e BOTE L MEVELE,

|— — SR MEVELIS

o = —BOOTE LEVELIA

Crmf = e BOOTE WLEVELIT,

P <, Y- X

SENTRRURRRINSR 3 N o -

SR e o e A8TE LEVELAL

,,,,,, ARG LEVELSS,
SRS U W———L 1 N Y

AN LEVEL Y,

S LY
e o e = o = S LLEUELT
e s e o e R EVELAL
|

[RPPPNRS: PR S U SN S =1 TSN )

ewAlAZ8 . HENERABCH RODF

U035 _ LEVEL AMate

SO S—— . R LT

e e e e | 2% _ASUELXIPSFLO0R PLiN

o s o oo A5 _LENELZLPA FLOOR PLAN

Al e i LNTYELZLP3FLOOR PLN

| _ w0 ENEL1IPIFLADR PLAK

BUILDING SECTION D_NORTH-SOUTH
iKelowna Downtown Hotel
Kelowna, BC

—_ e

2148 WRUELEL FLOOR PLAN

B\ BUILDING SECTION D_NORTH-SQUTH S seonemc
C.Iu_\_ SCALE. 1,309

A-28 v
2014/08/06 g
prosecT 10003 IK@SIAN



135

1 - Camegnt Composite Paneling Bystem - Colour Whitz
2-Castin Place Concrete - Clear Sealed
3 - Insulated Double Glazing Clear Flost Glass

4 - Insulated Double Glazing - (Sunguard Superneutral 54 or sim.)

§ - Opague Privacy Screen - Colour Amber/Yellow
& - Laminated fir canopy beams - Colour Light Brown
7« Metallic/ Gray Compasite Paneling System

8- Composite Paneling System - Colour Light Brown

1 BB

£ - Sandstone Venger - (Cultured Stone or sim.) - Colour Beige
10 - Aluminium Window Clear Anodized
11 - Prefinighed Metal Flashing - Colour Light Grey

12 - Painted steel - Colour Dark Grey

13- Painted Stesi - Cotour Light Brown
14 = Painted hollow metal door - Painted Grey

18 - Overhead metal door - Palnted Grey

ISCHEDULE ___
This forms part of development

S DRH-00aM [N P 10035

Material Board A-29
Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014/08106

Kelowna, BC PRGJECT 160013 xmmﬁm—.-




136

VIEW DESCRIPTION

This dramatic series of views from Okanagan Lake demonstrates how the
icenic landmark of the proposed Kelowna Downtown Hotel bookends the
Kelowna city skyline, harmonizes with the existing urban scale and context,
and provides an urban marker identlfying the integration of the downtown clty
centre with the waterfront, At night, the [t tower form will beautifully iiustrate
this as it provides & lantern on the horizon.

VIEW OF CITYSCAPE FROM QKANAGAN LAKE A-30
Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014/08/06

Kelowna, BC PROJECT 160013 —ﬁmm—m-ﬂ




137

VIEVS DESCRIPTION

This viewof the project Busirales

G M St - rompatio and poct, wilh it sulkle

A-31

Ny Aerial from Kerry Park ] Foot of Bernard Avenue
émw&ﬁo_‘._u (e Kelowna Downtown Hofel

Kelowna, BC

2014/08/06 %

prosecT 1e003|  IK@SIAT




il
JIJ :
¥

A s
1 ey i i iy I|i _._‘ 'I-'."JI; .'i_f. &-’ & . r

........

=

gy =g =y = 2 T %
B B A

Westcop

138

\REW DESCRIPTION

The proposed htel tower and podium
itegsaie with the Bemard Awe Block
iigﬂnﬁ.ﬁ&-i

| efly C'Bryan's Pub, The final terrece
5 scaled so a3 ta be ot the s

View from Bernard Ave
Kelowna Dewntown Hotel
Kelowna, BC

A=32
2014/08/06
PROJECT 160013

(3

Kasian




139

WVIEW CESCRIFTION

Thia view hightights the veristy of
Ireted scate and form that sddresees

are compased, ._.._..acmgo_ir
firepiace chirnay is the onchar point
for the scale tranzition towarnds Bemard

A-33
2014/08/08
PROJECT 180013

é@mﬁno_._u & View from Kerry Park

Kelowna Downtown Hetel
Kefowna, BC

"t

Kasian




View from the Water
Kelowna Downtown Hotel
Kelowna, BC

A-34

Bet back from Kemy Park and

imogroted with the highly activated
and ranaparent podium, the sisnder,
efiplical tower form anchors the
cgevelopment and marks the entry to the

gualily of the proposed developmesl
The stepping form of the podium brings
@

2014/08/06 %

PROJECT 160013

Kasian




141

VEEW DESCRIPTION

The textured balcony pafterns of the

Together, the two prejects will reinforce
Stuast Park as a significant urban
public open space on the waledront,
At prede a dramatic cantiievering port
cochere constrected of wood theme
Beemns will mark tise entrance to the
hotet and creste o focal point on the
tumabout proposed for the termines of
Queensway Avenue. Nidway on the
podium a feng horizontal balceny with
wood finighes will foriher activats Stuart
Park tegether with 8 larpe roafisp
terrace cerving the conference center,

A38
2014/08/06
PROJECT 160013

. View from Stuart Park
Westcorp

Kelowna Dewntown Hotel
Kelowna, BC

()

Kasian




142

warmith, presence and inviting feel of
ine hotel and the Kery Pask edgs, The

of the hated begins to ransidion down
to the padk 23 it lurra fo comer fowerd
Eemard Avenus,

View toward the Hotel Lobby A6 Vm;
<<mmﬁ8~._u Kelowna Downiown Hotel 201408106 *
. Kelowna, BC PROJECT 160013 —Amm—m —.—




VIEW DESCRIPTION

Viewed from City Hall and the northeast
comer of Quesntway snd Water

core of the Clty north along Waler
Sireet, A sirong mixes-uso clement
i festuring roiall end apestment hotel
a wnits creates a highly active snd
t!%ni.l%.mo.i_é!.g

3TN

2

5 , y .

isilisug.ii
of the city. Patics and docks enimate
Eog&n_i_faiilnaonuusa

e m A NS \ﬁ :

134994

L BRERRD)

Vimw from City Het ooener of
Quaeneway and Watsr sl

View from Queensway & Water St

EQMWOO_._U Kelowna Downtown Hotel

Kelowna, BC

A-37 V&ﬂ
2014/08/06
PROJECT 180013 -Amm—m—.—




144

VIEW DESCRIPTION

Viewnd from the city scale, the siznder
tewer form drmmaticaby terminates
the Queensway view corridor. Ferthe
pedestrian the pedium grounss the
tower, providing & warm, inleresting,
humnan stale experience a3 tha
pedestrian spproashes the hatel. The
roloada ot the comer of Water and

o y complements the elip
foweer form seen in the background
and st a0 wban scale is a formsl nod
towards City Hall.

i
Kasian

Kefowna Downtown Hotel 2014/08/06
Kelowna, BC PROJECT 160013

/)\Om#ﬂo_-_u View from D.snmsaiw«v A-38




Dewndovn Macina at dutk ond in the

and eonceris in the Park on summer
eusninga.

zﬂmas_.améi__gsml&.zm >.wm V. ._wm
Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014/08/06 aY

Kelewna, BC PROJECT 16013 xmm—m:




O

4
i

Hetprences and Assumptions

C7 - Proposed Setback Variances above 15m

. Arsas reprasenting eneroachment into 3.0m setbaak (See bylaw reference below
Asstmptions:  Varlances are based on prop 1 property lines as Hustrated
Bylew Feference: Consolidated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, £7 - Contm Buslnoss € 14.7.5 Dovel Reguiatiors, Section {o);

_.>$.un§eagmaiarnwwoﬁ._.mz..mgu,:_.iuanasacomia_ﬂeawaame..:uiﬂg!onuigns_d!.Biﬁ&:gg.oﬁngwmdwn:mnaiu”aﬁm?
The sbove sstbecks will be measured fram the rearest exterior buliding face, exchmsive of unenclosod halconies.”

1

|

I i

bt LEVEL 3/P5 F LEVEL 4

. & )
M Y _\ﬂ\n
_ m
m ; LEVEL 5 - HOTEL _ _/f LEVEL 6 - HOTEL
- & BALCONY CONFIG. A — BALCCHNY CONFIG. B
—— e 3T - Proposed Setbeck Variances above 15m A-40 ﬁ.

<<®m~,8~.—u {SCHI r yidl Kelowna Downlown Hote! 2014108106 %
- = - =E . o M Kelpwng, BC PROJECT 160013 -ﬁmm—mg

{ This forms part of development

__um:;z% P14 - 6o NP« 0035




147

C7 - Proposed Setback Variances above 22m

. Atens teprasentlng encroschmant into 10.0m setback (See bytaw raference balow)

Assumptions:  Variances are based on proposed property Hnes 23 lustrated.

Bylaw Reference: Cenesiidated Zoning Bylow Ne. 600D, {7 = Central Bus [
jotive L Section [
“Any portion of a buliding above 22,8m In helght must malntain & minimium setback of:
% 15.86 from any property line 0 ancther property line,

E

{i#) 30.0m betwetn mora than one tower on tha same proporty,
The above setbacks will be meastured from the nearest extarior building face, axclusive of
unshclosed balconies,”

Yo ox

IF_|I1

MRS R REREY

—
L
L
L
-

L

* ~ LEVEL 4 MEZZANIN
FLOOR PLAN
il . — - C7 - Proposed Setback Variances above 22m A4t v
<<mm_..8~._u \ : T IV Kelowna Downtown Hotel 2014/08/06 ’
= | 1L : — Kelowna, BC prosecT 1s00ts| IS

This forms part of developmen

“ .an.ﬁ.;% VQ T.T 00 w.*_\gﬁ —..m-‘oa\wmu




148

C7 - Proposed Variances: Building Height .
Downtown Plan - Comparative Analysis: Building Height

References and Assymptions

. Areis representing ercroachment inte 22.0m maximum buliding height.

. Arees representing encroachment above 19 Storay in bullding height,

Bylaw Reference:  Consoliated Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, GT ~Central Business
p tat 14.7.5 Dovel 1 Rogulations, Soction (z):
“The mamdmum hefght Is 22.6 m except In Azen 1 and Arsa 2, s shown
on C7 = Dingram A and Diagram C, attached to this bylaw.”

City of Kalowna  my Doventown, Feb. 2011, POLICIES, Saction 15, Willow Inn Site.:
Officlal Cemmunity  “Allow ui to 19 storeya on the formes Wikow Inn cite a the comer

P 92751 TRMEDHAMICAL
s To.noce_ 24 Storeys, 86.7 meters

preposed development gives caroful consideration to view impacts from
other parts of downtown, is a signaturs landmark buliding and that it
meets a high of design !l i

[P — |- -

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

-1 Propos=d Buiining Height VarEnee

(i) Preposcd Tower Height for Hotel Towen:
Te vary the maximum buliding height for Tower from 22 mio 86.7 m

7. LEVELE,.
o7 SRS 23 00 meters

{El: BOH ROOF— v s

! , - w . C7 - Proposed Variances: Bullding Height A-42 -
<<mm_HO~._u Kelowna Downtewn Hotel 2014/08/06 Mﬂ
e = ; Kelowna, BC prosecT1e00s|  IKASIQM

\,‘%s.sp&v%_r_-s»m



10 AM
12 PM
2 PM
Westcorp

MARCH 21

Shadow Analysis
Kelowna Dawntown Hotel
Kelowna, BC

SEPT 21

149

A-43
2014/08/06
PROJECT 180013

¢}

Kasian



APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A:

CITY OF KELOWNA

[1 Development Permit No.:

DP14-0024 & DVP14-0025

EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION:
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA:
DEVLOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT:

C7 - Central Business Commercial
Revitalization Development Permit Area

To vary to the maximum height of buildings and structures from
22.0m permitted to 83.995m proposed;

To vary minimum building setback above 15.0m abutting a street from
3.0m permitted to 0.0m proposed 8 minor encroachments into the
required setback as illustrated on Schedule “D” attached to this
permit;

To vary the minimum building setback from a lane for portions of a
building over 22.0 m in height from 10.0 m permitted to 0.0m
proposed as illustrated on Schedule “D” attached to this permit;

ISSUED TO: Westcorp Developments

LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE: 235 Queensway,1470 & 1476 Water Street, Portions of Mill Street and Queensway

LOT DISTRICT LOT TWP DISTRICT PLAN
2698
LEGAL 1&2 139 OoDYD 2180
: A 139 ODYD
DESCRIPTION: <05
6&7 139 oDYD
Shown as Closed
That Part of 0oDYD
District Lot 139 Road on Plan
EPP41444
SCOPE OF APPROVAL

O This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings,

structures and other development thereon.

O This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below.

O Applicants for a Heritage Alteration Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits the applicant to be
in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless specific Variances have
been authorized by the Permit. No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted by virtue of drawing
notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified as required Variances

by the applicant or City staff.

1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with

Schedule "A";

150




-2
DP14-0024 & DVP14-0025

2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with
Schedule "B";

3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C";
AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted:

Section 14.4.5 (c) Development Regulations - Height:
To vary the height from 15.0m / 4 storeys permitted to 19.4m / 5 storeys proposed.

Section 14.4.6 (b) Development Regulations - Private Open Space:
To vary the private open space for the 8 residential units from 120sq.m required to 32sq.m proposed.

The development shall commence by and in accordance with an approved Building Permit within ONE YEAR of
the date of the Municipal Council authorization resolution.

DEVELOPMENT:
The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and
provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part

hereof.

If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of
this Permit, this Permit shall lapse.

This Permit is not transferrable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality. The authorization to transfer
the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution.

THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit.

PERFORMANCE SECURITY:

As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that
development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit. Should any interest be
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is
returned. The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the
development hereby authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided,
the Municipality may use the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any
surplus shall be paid over to the Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by
this Permit within the time set out above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee. There is filed
accordingly:

@) Cash in the amount of $ N/A
(b) A Certified Cheque in the amount of $ N/A
(c) An Irrevocable Letter of Credit in the amount of § 453,245.00

Before any bond or security required under this Permit is reduced or released, the Developer will provide the
City with a statutory declaration certifying that all labour, material, workers' compensation and other taxes
and costs have been paid.

APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT:

| hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in
support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects. Upon issuance of the
Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, | covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually
indemnify the Municipality against:

(@) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by
whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit.

151



-3-
DP14-0024 & DVP14-0025

(b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of
engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property
owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged,
directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain.

| further covenant and agree that should | be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit,
the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any
building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works
or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and
Director of Planning & Development Services.

Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, | undertake to notify the Land Use
Management Departmant immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application.

| HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT.

Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent Date
Print Name in Bold Letters Telephone No.
5. APPROVALS:

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT & DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE 26™ DAY OF AUGUST, 2014

ISSUED BY THE DIVISIONAL DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND REAL ESTATE OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE DAY
OF , 2014.

Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director of Community Planning and Real Estate

152



REPORT TO COUNCIL

City of

Date: 7/25/2014 Kelowna
RIM No. 0940-50

To: City Manager

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC)

Application: DVP14-0122 Owner: :zvgggggrggfzrties Ltd., Inc.
Address: 1545 Keehn Road Applicant: Five Star Permits

Subject: Development Variance Permit

Existing OCP Designation: SC - Service Commercial

Existing Zone:

C10 - Service Commercial

1.0 Recommendation

THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0122 for Lot A,

District Lot 125, ODYD, Plan EPP36652 located at 1545 Keehn Road, Kelowna, BC.

AND THAT the variance to the following section of Sign Bylaw No. 8235 be granted:

Section 6.1 - Specific Zone Regulations

To vary the number of allowable fascia signs from 2 signs per business to 3 signs per business.

2.0 Purpose

To allow one (1) additional proposed fascia sign on the south elevation of the building.

3.0 Urban Planning

A Development Permit (DP14-0005) was approved by Council on February 17" 2014 for the
subject property. The plans attached to that Development Permit indicated the additional sign,
however a variance was not applied for or granted. The Local Government Act states that any
variance has to be explicitly stated within the Development Permit, thus the need for the

applicant to apply for this Development Variance Permit.

Staff support the variance request as the impact is minor in nature and the sign content was

inadvertantly approved in the original Development Permit drawings.

In accordance with Council Policy 367 - Public Notification & Consultation for Development
Applications, the applicant has provided notification of the proposed Development Variance
Permit application to neighbouring properties within 50 m of the subject site. To date, City staff

has not been contacted with any objections or concerns with the proposed variance.

153



DVP14-0122- Page 2

4.0 Proposal

4.1 Site Context

The subject property is located on the south side of the intersection of Highway 97N and Keehn
Road. The lot is zoned C10 - Service Commercial and contains a single storey commercial building
with multiple tenants. Within the entire 8,463m? lot, the development proposal is limited to the
westernmost portion.

Development surrounding the lot is characterized by a mix of highway oriented service
commercial, tourist commercial, and residential.

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows:

Orientation Zoning Land Use
North C10 - Service Commercial Bed, Bath and Beyond
East C10 - Service Commercial Various commercial businesses
C9 - Tourist Commercial Motel
South RU1 - Large Lot Housing Large Lot Single Detached Dwellings
RM1 - Four Dwelling Housing Four-plex Housing
West C10 - Service Commercial Auto sales

154



4.2 Zoning Analysis Table

CRITERIA

DVP14-0122- Page 3

Analysis Table

C10 ZONE REQUIREMENTS

PROPOSAL

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations

wash) = 22 stalls

Lot Area 1,000 m’ 8,463 m’
Lot Width 40.0 m exceeds
Lot Depth 30.0m Approx. 47.0-54.0 m
Development Regulations
Floor Area Ratio 0.65 0.32
Site Coverage 60% 31%
Height Lesser of 12.0 m or 3 storeys 2 storeys / 7.35 m
Front Yard (north) 2.0m 16.4m
Side Yard (east) 0.0m 8.0m
Side Yard (west) Hwy 97 4.5 m 7.9 m
Rear Yard 0.0m 11.9m
Other Regulations
Minimum Parking Requirements Z per service bay (including car 23 stalls

Bicycle Parking

2 Class 1 stalls
4 Class 2 stalls

2 Class 1 stalls
6 Class 2 stalls

Loading Space

1 space

1

Landscaping

Front: Level 3
Side (hwy 97): Level 4
Side: Level 3
Rear: Level 3

Level 3
Level 4
Level 3
Level 3

5.0 Current Development Policies
5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP)

Comprehensive Development

Permit Guideline Objectives'

» Promote a high urban design standard and quality of construction for future development
that is coordinated with existing structures;

« Integrate new development with existing site conditions and preserve the character
amenities of the surrounding area;

» Promote interesting, pedestrian friendly streetscape design and pedestrian linkages;

» Provide for a scale and massing of commercial buildings that promotes a safe, enjoyable

living, pedestrian, working, shopping and service experience;

« Incorporate architectural features and detailing of buildings and landscapes that define an

area’s character;

» Promote alternative transportation with enhanced streetscapes and multimodal linkages;

' City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Chapter 14: Urban Design Development Permit Area, Comprehensive Development Permit

Area Objectives, p. 14.2.

155



DVP14-0122- Page 4

» Reduce outdoor water use in new or renovated landscape areas in the City by a target of
30%, when compared to 2007.
6.0 Technical Comments
6.1 Building & Permitting Department

No comment.

6.2 Development Engineering Department

a) The proposed sign does not have any negative impact on the traffic or on any
Municipal infrastructure.

b) This Development Variance Permit does not trigger any offsite upgrades. All the
servicing requirements that were addressed in the Development Engineering report
under file DP14-0005 have been satisfied.

7.0  Application Chronology

Date of Application Received: June 18" 2014
Date Public Consultation Received: August 6™ 2014

Report prepared by:

Adam Cseke, Urban Land Use Planner
Reviewed by: I:l Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor

Approved Inclusion: I:l Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager

Attachments:

Development Variance Permit (DVP14-0122)
Attachments

156



Map Output

Page 1 of 1

Application

DVP14-0122

Subject Property

2% 73 ¥ g v s
+ PL.764416 pi s 72

5
825

7
7 7
/,/
, © KD53452

PLAN 39268
N3

v b ] 1
i) 204 Aok
Kdis s B = 9. M2
=111 ["RU6\ \
SYLVANIACR .7 .
IR s F g
3k [op ] . K285 |7 e
K259¢/ . . K274p cr|RL.4374 RU4
oh LK DU RMA |
PLAN|16535 " et DG A
..... . '8 N S o

FIRCT Vg

= T

R‘..g.

IMap: 847 x 913 m -- Scale 1:5,000

2014-

06-18

Certain layers such as lots, zoning and dp areas are updated bi-weekly. This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its accuracy. All information should be verified.

http:/kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Overview_Map&Clie... 18/06/2014

157



CITY OF KELOWNA
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A:

[1 Development Variance Permit No.: DVP14—0122

EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: C-10 - Service Commercial
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA: n/a

ISSUED TO: Hywood Properties Ltd., Inc. No. BC0992662.

LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE: 1545 Keehn Road

LOT D.L. PLAN SECTION TOWNSHIP DISTRICT
LEGAL
DESCRIPTION: A 125 Plan EPP36652 ODYD

SCOPE OF APPROVAL

[1 This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings,
structures and other development thereon.

[ This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below.

[1 Applicants for Development and Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits
the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless
specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit. No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted
by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified
as required Variances by the applicant or City staff.

1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

THAT the variance to the following section Sign Bylaw No. 8235 be granted:

Section 6.1 - Specific Zone Regulations
To vary the number of allowable fascia signs from 2 signs per business to 3 signs per business.

3. PERFORMANCE SECURITY: None Required.

4. DEVELOPMENT:

The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and
provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part
hereof.

If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of
this Permit, this Permit shall lapse.

This Permit is not transferable unless specifically permitted by the Municipality. The authorization to transfer
the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution.
158




-2- Permit No. DVP14-0122

THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit.
5. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT:

| hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in
support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects. Upon issuance of the
Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, | covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually
indemnify the Municipality against:

(@) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by
whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit.

(b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of
engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property
owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged,
directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain.

| further covenant and agree that should | be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit,
the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any
building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works
or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and
Divisional Director of Community Planning & Real Estate.

Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, | undertake to notify the Urban Planning
Department immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application.

| HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT.

Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent Date

Print Name in Bold Letters Telephone No.

6. APPROVALS:

DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE __ DAY OF , 2014.

ISSUED BY THE URBAN PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE ___ DAY OF , 2014 BY THE

DIVISIONAL DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY PLANNING & REAL ESTATE.

Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director - Community Planning & Real Estate

159



Site check is required prior to production

156 7/8" (4.7m)

SIGN 3 South Elevation

ITEM 1.

MODEL: Single Face llluminated Cabinet-Frameless
TYPE/DEPTH: Fabricated Aluminum 5" Deep

LIGHTING:
White LEDs
FRAME: EX 7

FACE: Face over Frame: 1/8” aluminum routed w/ 1” clear acrylic
pushthru copy “BCAA”/Logo & dividers (1/2" clear acrylic) w/ White

vinyl applied

MOUNTING: Mounted to building - wall mount

| This forms |

Permit # Of\ﬁ

xl.ﬁ!l,.:,ﬂi
CCHFDILI F
| rrl-l-\fn.rlq.rllu

HHoh 3\_@3&

-gop_® P .))l, ~F Aavel )JS)L)}

Qeveilup

L\ONNN

1 i
3-23/16"
e
40"
Side View

Vinyl Colours: Paint Colours:
*3U4 3630-157 Sultan Blue *Cabinct/Face Ptd to match
*314 3630-43 Lt. Tomato Red | Sultan Blue MP 2136
*314 3630-20 White *White: N202SP

[(X]1st Surface [ 2nd Surface| FONT:

NOTES:
b ag_ﬁoﬁfamnow_nn)wwzxm_oism ﬁ§Wo:" Sl o Changes /Sgn2 CONCEPTUAL ONLY, Qecte "  6670-03-14-BCAA-DJ |
Revised font to Proxima d
X JAT0 ey dove; Kelowios i iR gl 1, 204 Revied to M Calnets Revizian: R2 SIGN 3
KNIGHT SIGNS. Account Manager: Dale Wiasichuk o M Sk P Sot ey
irerey Date: March 13, 2014 | Seale: 1/2%=1-0" Job:Hurber: QUANTITY: 1
THA otginat g b the ot nigh S . Client's Date Account Manager Approval Date
e ol | DRAWING 3




Frontage 35.5m

Roofline 7.3m__

__Clearance 5.8m_

| 206"+

15'67/8"

 (
WS L LU

i .)1:\) nart A
1NIS i of U

eve

JD,&VE, GG:

South Elevation Scale: 1 : 100
Scale 1em=1m

‘e z%é_ru:.

&

Project Name: BCAA Kelowna
CUSTOMER: OMICRON
18-1470 Harvey Ave, Kelowna, BC

Art Revisions:
*Rev 1-April 01, 2014: Sign 1-No Changes / Skgn 2
Revised font to Proxima Semi Bold

QuoteNumber:  6670-03-14-BCAA-DJ

“Rev 2-April 11, 2014: Revised to 3'H Cablnets - Revision: s
KNIGHT SIGNS. Account Manager: Dale Wlasichuk [Rorti® Wt Clov/ 418 Soush Elev R2 South Elevation
parere Date: March 13,2014 | Seale: 1: 100 <ob Hsatior; QUANTITY: AS SHOWN

Thin arigioaldoowioy 1 the peopesty ot vt s me. | Client's Approval Date Account Manager Approval Date
A DRAWING 6

ot it weition pos mhalon of Kokt L .
Coppeitht © 303

161




801 ALY

162

KELOWNA

1545 KEEHN ROAD, KELOWNA BC

PROPOSED BUILDING “ r“% . EXISTING BUILDING
1545 KEEHN ROAD _ d
PID 029-219-850
|

._r__

| | _wo.._.\..amK “. =
LOTA 5 7 ST
= 2 = t |
PLAN EPP36852 BICYCLE RACKS !
(2 CLASS 1 STALLS ! [

\t CANOPY ABOVE
NN N N N NN
\ ./ ‘., .x, N \ ,/ 3 \

L o~ e




	Agenda
	4.1 bl10992.pdf
	4.2 bl10993.pdf
	4.3 bl10994.pdf
	4.4 bl10995.pdf
	6.1 BL10962 - OCP14-0005 - Queensway Ave - Water Street - Mill Street.docx
	6.1.1 BL10963 - Z14-0006 - Queensway Ave - Water Street - Mill Street.docx
	6.1.2 2014 08 26 Report DP14-0024 DVP14-0025.docx
	6.1.2 2014 08 26 Attachments DP14-0024 DVP14-0025.pdf
	6.1.2 DP14-0024 - Permit Draft.doc
	6.2 2014 08 26 Report DVP14-0122 Keehn Rd.docx
	6.2 2014 08 26 Attachments DVP14-0122 1545 Keehn Rd.pdf

